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Mission Statement

KA Ea

Natural Beauty is dedicated to cultivate our staff,
customers, students and franchisees to appreciate our
education, products and services, which are made by the
love and kindness of our founder, Dr. Tsai Yen-Pin, who
made modern ladies beautiful, confident and wealthy.
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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
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(alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin) (Chairperson)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta

(alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah) (Vice Chairman)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Vice Chairman)
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina

Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan

Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER
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Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing
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Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information
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REGISTERED OFFICE AMREE
PO. Box 309 P.O. Box 309
Ugland House Ugland House
Grand Cayman Grand Cayman
KY1-1104 KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
35/F One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

King & Wood Mallesons

13/F, Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
15 Queen’s Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Hong Kong Registrar Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Cayman Islands
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LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00157

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Land Bank of Taiwan
No. 76, Section 2, Tun Hua South Road
Taipei

Taiwan

Mega International Commercial
No. 62, Section 2, Tun Hua South Road
Taipei

Taiwan

Bank of Communications
Shanghai Branch, Zhabei Sub-branch
211 Hengtong Road

Shanghai

The PRC

China Minsheng Banking Corporation Limited
Shanghai branch, Hongkou Sub-branch

1/F Gulf Building

53 Huangpu Road

Shanghai

The PRC

WEBSITE

www.nblife.com/ir
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Financial Highlights

B35 2

Selected Financial Data BREERE FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013
HKS'000 (except per share data) 87T (BIREUERSN) —TTNE ZT-TF T—F 22— ZIZEB-=%

MHEE MHEE MHEE MBEE BBEE
Revenue WA 538,092 485,389 591,295 483438 439,421
Cost of sales SHERAR 122913 130,007 122,162 103,592 106,321
Gross profit =l 415179 355,382 469,133 379,846 333,100
Operating profit eyl 186,753 75848 173,647 155,251 83,052
Profit for the year REZ A 143923 30,710 115,172 119,108 58,459
Dividends P& 150,139 160,168 170,179 45,648 52,655
EPS - basic BRARN — EX $0.0750 $0.0160 $0.0580 $0.0600 $0.0290
DPS SRR $00750 $0.0800 $0.0850 $0.0228 $0.0260
Return on Equity (ROE) [P&NEIE 16.8% 3.7% 14.7% 15.9% 7.4%
Return on Assets (ROA) BERR 14.2% 3.2% 12.1% 13.5% 6.0%




Financial Highlights
BB EE

TURNOVER BY
ACTIVITIES BREAKDOWN (%)

BEBZE D 2 EXF (%)

1.2% 98.8%

Services Products

iR #% Em

TURNOVER BY
GEOGRAPHICAL BREAKDOWN (%)
B E D 2 E X E (%)

1.2% 17.0%
Others (Hong Kong, Taiwan
Macau and Malaysia) =y
Hity (&% -
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FERFEE)

81.8%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S ER RS

Financial Review Bt % 2
Turnover by
geographical region BB D 2 B EEE 2013 2012 Changes
—E—=%F —E——F BE
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET % TET %  FET %
PRC e ETp N7 359,473 81.8% 379,582 78.5% (20,109) -5.3%
Taiwan =) 74,654 17.0% 97516 20.2% (22,862) -23.4%
Others HAith 5,294 1.2% 6,340 1.3% (1,046) -16.5%
Total 4azt 439,421 100.0% 483,438 100.0% (44,017) -9.1%

Turnover of the Group in 2013 decreased by 9.1% to HK$439.4 million compared
with HK$483.4 million in 2012. The decline was mainly due to decline in product
sales of HK$45.4 million, largely influenced by the weak consumer market in

Taiwan, and rationalization of the franchised spas in China.

Turnover in the PRC market decreased by 5.3% from HK$379.6 million in 2012 to
HKS$359.5 million in 2013, whereas turnover in the Taiwan market declined from
HK$97.5 million in 2012 to HK$74.7 million in 2013.

Sales in other regions, including Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau, decreased by
16.5% from HK$6.3 million in 2012 to HKS$5.3 million in 2013. Contributions of
these regions to the Group's turnover remained insignificant, which accounted
for 1.2% only.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin declined from 78.6% in 2012 to 75.8%
in 2013. This is because of various reasons, such as the inventory write-off for
collagen drinks, lower counter mix for high-margin products, increasing product
cost due to new packaging, and increased depreciation from the renovated self-
owned spa.

KREBEEER _T-——_FEH1B2
483,400,000 JT N B91%E — L —=F 7
439,400,000/ 7C ° LLKIBEEZEHR A EEES

SR NP ABEMBEERER  H2EM
& B 445,400,000/ TTET B ©
FRAEMSE2EEBER _T—_F2

379,600,000/ JT T #k53%E — T — = F 2
359,500,000/ 7T ¢ MEEMEH 2 &R
T — 4297500000 T THE_ZT—=
2.74,700,00078 7T ©

Hipthle (RIEEE - BREERRM) 28
BT E165% BB =% — Z 4 26,300,000/
JCNERE ZF — =4 75300000/ T ° 25
B AEEEEE s BRMDARN - EHARE
B & 3ERE1.2% ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (Continued) Bf B (&)
Turnover by activities — IREFEE| D 2 EEEE 2013 2012 Changes
—E-=F T F #E)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FET %
Products Em
PRC EipN S 356,892 378,145 (21,253) -5.6%
Taiwan =y 72,034 95,107 (23,073) -24.3%
Others Hit 5,294 6,340 (1,046) -16.5%
Total 4EET 434,220 479,592 (45,372) -9.5%
Services R
PRC S lEy N 2,581 1437 1,144 79.6%
Taiwan =0 2,620 2,409 211 8.8%
Others H - - - N/A i A
Total st 5,201 3,846 1,355 352%




Management Discussion and Analysis

S ER RS

Financial Review (Continued)

ETHEHHGFEWE ‘G
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Turnover by activities REKRE D EER 2012 Changes
—E-=F —E-—fF gk
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000

FET %  TAT %  FAT %
Products Emm 434,220 98.8% 479,592 99.2% 45,372) -9.5%
Services BR7 5,201 1.2% 3,846 0.8% 1,355 35.2%
Total #BaEt 439,421  100.0% 483438 100.0% (44,017) 9.1%
Products Em
The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales of a range of AEBFZEL[AAE] RRRERIFEES
products, including skin care, beauty, aroma-therapeutic products, health — Efm * EAEM * BB Em © BERM R

REEASRER EnHEAFEEETENK
AR - BFZREMBKEFL - BELE
KEFLEBERAREE —T—=F2EM
84 €5 #H1¥434,200,00078 7T (SIG A& BAAKA
98.8%) * B — T — —F 7 $5E %479,600,000/8
7T (3 fh AN & & 42 W A99.2%) IRl 445,400,000
in product sales was mainly attributable to the decline of HK$21.3 million and 7T ° E ma iH & FR 2 F B B 50 A BIR B K&
HK$23.1 million in sales in the PRC and Taiwan market respectively. BE™M%S 2 #HE R D Al T 21,300,000 7T &

23,100,000 JTCFTER °

supplements and make-up products under the “Natural Beauty” brand. Product
sales are the Group's key revenue source and primarily come from franchised
spas, self-owned spas and concessionary counters at department stores. Product
sales in 2013 amounted to HK$434.2 million, or 98.8% of the Group’s total
revenue, representing a decrease of HK$45.4 million when compared with sales
of HK$479.6 million or 99.2% of the Group's total revenue in 2012. The decrease
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEIER RS

Financial Review (Continued)

Bf % EEE (%)

Products (Continued) Em(8)
Service income R AUk 2= 2013 2012 Changes
—E-=5F —E——F =)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET % BT %
Training income || U 25 342 6.6% 222 5.8% 120 54.1%
SPA service income KBRS W 2 4,115 79.1% 2,682 69.7% 1,433 53.4%
Others Hib 744 14.3% 942 24.5% (198) -21.0%
Total HaET 5,201 100.0% 3,846 100.0% 1,355 35.2%
Services PR 7%

Service income is derived from the self-owned spas’ services, training and other

services.

The Group provides skin treatment, beauty and spa services through its self-
owned spas. As at 31 December 2013, the Group has 1 self-owned spa in China
and 3 self-owned spas in Taiwan.

Service income is solely derived from the Group’s self-owned spas. The Group
does not share any service income generated from spas run by franchisees
under its current franchise arrangements. In 2013, service income increased by
35.2% to HKS$5.2 million compared with HKS3.8 million in 2012. The increase was
mainly due to the re-opening of a newly renovated self-owned spa in the fourth
quarter in 2012 in China.

Other income

Other income decreased by 3.4%, or HK$0.7 million, from HK$20.6 million in 2012
to HK$19.9 million in 2013. Other income mainly comprised rental income from
other properties, interest income and financial refunds, amounting to HK$3.3
million, HK$9.3 million and HK$7.0 million respectively in 2013.

RS EIRE B E/REHR LRSS - F9I REA
AR

AEBFEBHEBERLEKERLRMEISE &
B XBRRKERE -BE-_T-=F+t-A
=t—B EMEFEREFEE -—KREELE
KL WHESEREA =8 &KL ENRET
o

R EEREAEE 2 BELEKERD o
RRITIMBLE R - AREBETREDEMEE
KEKBER LB Z AR RERE - RZT—
=F - RBKER =T — =4 23,800,000/& T
38 hA35.2% % 5,200,000 7T - AR EZE MR
RAEBM R BEAREZ B BEENKEFR LKL
BH% R —FENEEEFHEEM
@( o

H bl 2

H Azl — T — = 4 220,600,000 7T 8
3.4% (8%700,00077C) £19,900,00078 7T « R =
T—=F HEfl=FEeEHmwEs e
I as « B R BT ERE - 9 Bl A3,300,000
AT+ 9,300,000/ 7T 57,000,000/ 7T ©



Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (Continued)

Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of the Group's turnover
slightly increased to 40.0% in 2013 compared with 39.2% in 2012 due to higher
depreciation and staff cost. Total expenses decreased by HK$14.0 million from
HK$189.6 million in 2012 to HK$175.6 million in 2013. During 2013, the Group’s
strategy is to maintain a healthy inventory level of franchisees by assisting its
franchises with sell through activities rather than brand building activities.
Therefore, the Group decreased its advertising and promotion expenses by
HK$16.0 million from HK$48.1 million in 2012 to HKS$32.1 million in 2013. The
Group intends to resume its brand building activities in 2014 and onwards to
increase brand awareness.

Administrative expenses as a percentage of the Group’s turnover increased to
20.7% in 2013 from 9.3% in 2012. Total administrative expenses increased by
HK$46.1 million to HKS$91.1 million in 2013. The increase in total administrative
expenses in 2013 was mainly because of a reversal of non-cash management
option expenses charged in previous year which amounted to HK$29.2 million.
Other administrative expenses comprised increased severance pay due to
organizational restructuring for operational efficiency which amounted to HK$2.7
million, product registration fee of HK$2.7 million, bad debt provision of HK$2.3
million and tax consultancy fee of HK$1.7 million.

Other expenses

Other expenses decreased from HKS$10.6 million in 2012 to HK$3.2 million
in 2013 by HK$7.4 million. The decrease was primarily attributable to lower
exchange loss of HK$5.4 million and lower loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment which amounted to HK$2.3 million.

Profit before tax

Taking into account the decrease in gross profit, lower distribution and selling
expenses, other income and other expenses, and increased administrative
expenses, profit before tax decreased by 46.5% from HK$155.3 million in 2012
to HKS$83.1 million in 2013. Our pre-tax profit margin decreased to 18.9% in
2013 from 32.1% in 2012 mainly due to lower gross profit margin and higher
administrative expenses.

MEERE @)

DHRITEHEAX
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Management Discussion and Analysis

S ERES R

Financial Review (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation expenses decreased by 31.9% from HK$36.1 million in 2012 to HK$24.6
million in 2013 due to lower profit before tax. The effective tax rates of the Group
in 2012 and 2013 were 23.3% and 29.6% respectively. If all non-cash stock option
expense and reversal were excluded in both years, the effective tax rates of the
Group will be 28.4% and 29.2% in 2012 and 2013 respectively.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year decreased by 50.9% from HK$119.1 million in 2012 to HK$58.5
million in 2013. Profit for the year would have dropped by 34.7% if all non-cash
stock option expenses and reversal were excluded in both years, from HK$91.1
million in 2012 to HK$59.5 million in 2013.

Liquidity and financial resources

Cash generated from operating activities in 2013 was approximately HK$108.3
million (HK$59.5 million in 2012). The increase was mainly due to the increase in
working capital (decrease in inventory). As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$507.4 million (HK$432.4 million as
at 31 December 2012) with no external bank borrowing.

In terms of gearing, as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013, the

Group's gearing ratios were zero (defined as net debt divided by shareholders’

equity) as the Group was in a net cash position on both year-end dates. Current
ratios of the Group (defined as current assets divided by current liabilities) as
at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 were 4.4 times and 3.7 times
respectively. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities, other than those disclosed in its financial statements and notes thereto.
With the cash and bank balances in hand, the Group’s liquidity position remains
strong and it has sufficient financial resources to finance its commitments and to
meet its working capital requirements.

MR (&)

IR

HRHAAMBETE  HEXEH T ——F
236,100,000/ JT R 231.9%FE — T —=F 2
246000005 7C « KEBR —E——ER -
—=F2EBRWMED R R233%K%29.6% © IR
ZMF A IR € RIRER X KBRS
ER - A= R-F-SEE ERBE
15 Bl 5528.4%52.29.2% ©

KEERF

REEHEFNBZF— =4 2119,100,000% 7T
B A509%%F = F — = F 258,500,000 TC °
WA AMBEFE 2B ACBRER
REB 28 ANEEGEFAT®K47% A=
T —ZF791,1000008 TR EZT—=F 2
59,500,000/ 7T °

RBESRUBER

RZE-—ZF2EEEBEMBSHRSOR
108,300,000/ 7T (= & — = £ 459,500,000/
) MR EMEEETEARNEEE LA
(FERDY) RZE—=F+=A=1+—8"
REE 2 SRITHTF RIR £ #//8507,400,0007% 7T
(R=ZE—=F+= A =+—H /432,400,000
Br) - BIMmEINRIRITER ©

BEAEBEFA RZZ—=-F+=-A=+—H
R_ZB—=F+"_A=+—B ARAEEHE

MEFEEZEBHENFRSNRR - HEE
BELE (RERFABRIUKREER) AR
B2 -R-BE—-F+t-A=+—HBRZ-ZT—=
F+A=+—R0  XEEZRBLE (RE
BRBEERURBEE) 95l A44E K37
B-RZE—Z=ZF+A=+—8  RRIH
BRENREBEMTREEN  REETEEX
FREE - BEMBAZRE MRITET - K
SEZRBESMAERRE - EMBERR
W RUENEAREREEESMHMT -



Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Review (Continued)

Treasury policies and exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates
Most of the Group’s revenues are denominated in Renminbi and New Taiwan
Dollars as its operations are mainly located in the PRC and Taiwan. As at 31
December 2013, approximately 79.1% (70.9% as at 31 December 2012) of
the Group's bank balances and cash was denominated in Renminbi, while
approximately 15.6% (21.3% as at 31 December 2012) in New Taiwan Dollars.
The remaining 5.3% (7.8% as at 31 December 2012) was denominated in US
Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and Ringgit Malaysia. The Group continues to adopt
a conservative approach in the management of foreign exchange risks. It reviews
its foreign exchange risks periodically and uses derivatives to hedge against such
risks whenever necessary.

Business Review
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Turnover by

geographic region i B0 2 X 2013 2012 Changes
—¥-=F "—T-F #
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&xT T FET %
PRC R A B
Products B 356,892 378,145 (21,253) -5.6%
Services AR7 2,581 1437 1,144 79.6%
PRC Total F B K B AR AT 359,473 379,582 (20,109) -5.3%
Taiwan =)
Products B 72,034 95,107 (23,073) -24.3%
Services AR 2,620 2,409 211 8.8%
Taiwan Total BEws 74,654 97,516 (22,862) -23.4%
Others Hith
Products Em 5,294 6,340 (1,046) -16.5%
Services BR7 - - = N/A @R
Others Total E b aaEtT 5,294 6,340 (1,046) -16.5%

ETHEHHGFERE ‘G

.
=% —

MLt



€10z Woday fenuuy  paywir] ABojouyda)-oig Aineag [einieN (N

Management Discussion and Analysis

S ERES R

Business Review (Continued)

The PRC Market

Turnover in the market decreased by 5.3% in 2013 to HK$359.5 million compared
with HK$379.6 million in 2012. The decline was mainly due to rationalizing the
franchised spas (including slowing down new store opening) to ensure quality
and increase their door productivity with measures such as maintaining healthy
inventory level and assisting in sell through activities. Gross margin on product
sales decreased from 80.7% in 2012 to 76.9% in 2013, as a result of (1) inventory
write-off due to a collagen crisis and the introduction of stringent regulations
related to food supplements, which amounted to HK$5.9 million; (2) lower
channel mix of counter with higher margins; and (3) significant cost inflation,
especially higher depreciation for newly renovated self-owned spa during 2013.

The Taiwan Market

Turnover for the Taiwan market also declined by 23.4% from HK$97.5 million in
2012 to HKS$74.7 million in 2013 amid a slowdown in retail sales and economic
growth. Gross margin on product sales decreased from 80.9% in 2012 to 63.0%
in 2013 due to lower plant productivities which increased the product cost and
inflated costs during the year.
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Business Review (Continued) KO @)
Distribution channels DEHRE
Franchisee Self
Store Number by RERREESZ owned owned Total  Entrusted  Self owned Total Grand
Ownership EHEE Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter  Counter Total
MRERE BELE  KEAD Zit BE =i 28
KERL  KERD @y RESE  LEERE st Foh
Asat 31 December2013 R—E—=5+-F=+—-H
Taiwan =] 270 3 273 - - - 273
PRC B ARE 1,099 1 1,100 12 18 30 1,130
Others Hit 30 - 30 - - - 30
Total st 1,399 4 1,403 12 18 30 1,433
Franchisee Self
Store Number by RREAREDZ owned owned Total  Entrusted  Self owned Total Grand
Ownership B E Spa Spa Spa Counter Counter  Counter Total
MBEHEE  gELE  KERDL 7 EE E¥ 28
KERD  KERDL @i mEIRE  L2EE oy st
Asat31December 2012 WZZE——F+-A=1+—H
Taiwan =y 292 3 295 - - - 295
PRC B ARE 1128 1 1129 19 25 44 1173
Others Hit 30 - 30 = = = 30
Total Bt 1450 4 1454 19 25 44 1498
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Business Review (Continued)
Distribution channels (Continued)

E39E] - NE))
DEYEE ()

2013 2012
2013 2012 Average Average
Average sales SRR Average Average sales sales
per store TFIHERE store* store* per store per store Changes
—E—=F T4  ZB—_=H —ZT—_F
54 JE4 EREMH BEEH
FHEHE*  FHHE*  FHEEW THHEHER )
HK$ HKS HKS %
BT BT BT %
PRC LN S 1,151.5 1,182.5 312,000 321,000 (9,000) -2.8%
Taiwan A 284.0 304.0 263,000 321,000 (58,000) -18.1%
Group total** S B BT 1,435.5 1,486.5 302,000 321,000 (19,000) -5.9%

* Average store number is calculated by (opening period total + closing period

total)/2

** Group total does not include Hong Kong and Malaysia turnover and store count.

The Group derives its income principally from its network of distribution
channels, including spas and concessionary counters at department stores. As
at 31 December 2013, there were 1,403 spas and 30 concessionary counters, of
these, 1,399 were franchised spas, 4 spas and 18 concessionary counters were
directly operated by the Group. Franchised spas are owned by the franchisees
who are responsible for the capital investment in these spas. They are obliged to
use only Natural Beauty or “NB”" products in their spas. A wide array of services,
including hydrotherapy, facial treatment, body care and skin care analysis,
are provided in all the spas, while skin care analysis is widely available at the
concessionary counters at department stores.

Group-wide, a total of 46 new stores were opened and 111 stores were closed
during 2013. Average sales per store decreased from HK$321,000 in 2012 to
HK$302,000 in 2013.

* ?%Eﬁﬁ%@u(,HH%M%%-F,HE?K%@EJr)/z
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— B NEEHA1 403K ES O R30EHE
18 &R EiE399MMBEKEF L - 4fFKE
FLRISESEAAEBMERLE - NEAKE
FOBMBEES  BEEERERFKERL
MERIGE - FEZNKERMERMEABARE
5 [NB] MEEEM - SKBERLIREZER
% BEKE Bk EEHEEULEEEE
DRY - MEEAREEEZREE SR
DA o
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Business Review (Continued)

Research and Development

The Group puts significant emphasis on research and development, which
enables it to maintain its competitive edge, to continuously improve the
quality of its existing products and develop new products. The Group has been
collaborating with overseas skin-care companies on technological advancement.
The biotechnology materials the Group uses for its NB products are imported
from Europe, Japan and Australia. The Group's research and development team
comprises a number of overseas consultants with experience and expertise in
cosmetics, medicine, pharmacy and bio-chemistry. NB's products are constantly
enhanced and modified by the application of new ingredients developed by the
team. The Group draws on its collaboration of experts with different expertise
and experiences, together with Dr. Tsai's 40-plus-year industry experience and
knowledge to continue to create high-quality beauty and skin care products.
NB principally uses natural ingredients to manufacture products and adopts
special formulae to cater for the specific needs of women with delicate skin. NB
products accommodate the natural metabolism of skin with long-lasting effects.

Natural Beauty has collaborated with a leading researcher in the field of human
genome and stem cell technology for the development of an anti-aging NB-1
product family and other products for spot removal, whitening, allergy-resistance
and slimming. The stem cell technology is patented in the United States to
protect the uniqueness of the NB-1 products.

Products

The Group's flagship NB-1 product family includes the anti-aging NB-1 series,
NB-1 Whitening series, NB-1 anti-allergy and NB-1 pore refining series. During
2013, over 409,000 sets/bottles (422,000 sets/bottles in 2012) of NB-1 family
products were sold with turnover amounting to HK$177.4 million (HK$171.8
million in 2012) and accounting for more than 40% of the Group's total product
sales recorded in 2013.

During 2013, the Group continued to enrich this product portfolio and launched
7 new skin care product sets, including eye care, facials, and body slim chest and
lip kits in the PRC, to effectively support sales in the franchisees.
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S ERES R

Business Review (Continued)

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of 682 employees, of
whom 562 were based in the PRC, 116 in Taiwan and 4 in other countries and
regions. Total remuneration (excluding directors' emoluments) during 2013 was
approximately HK$119.5 million (HK$89.2 million in 2012), including retirement
benefit related costs of HK$17.8 million (HK$18.6 million in 2012), and share
option expenses of HKS$1.1 million. Competitive remuneration packages are
maintained to attract, retain and motivate capable staff members and are

reviewed on a regular basis.

The Group maintains good relations with its employees and is committed to
their training and development. Professional training courses are offered to
beauticians employed by the Group and to franchisees on a regular basis.

In addition, the Group granted stock options to the Chief Executive Officer and
other key employees on 10 May 2013 and 19 April 2013 respectively to subscribe
for a maximum of 73,276,890 shares, which once vested, may be exercised by the
holder prior to the expiry of 10 years from the date of grant of the options and
at the earlier of, (a) the 9-year anniversary of the date of grant of the options and
(b) the occurrence of a change in control of the Company. The options will vest
over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the publication of the audited
financial results of the Group for the financial year 2014 subject to the grantees
achieving certain performance targets. During 2013, the Group adjusted HK$0.4
million of the old scheme and lapsed options for the employees who resigned
in 2013. Share option expenses for the remaining grantees charged in 2013
amounted to HK$0.7 million (HK$1.2 million in 2012).

Capital Expenditures

The Group's major capital expenditure during 2013 related to its refurbishment
work for its offices, IT infrastructure and machinery in its factories. Fixed assets
investment decreased to HK$22.6 million in 2013 (HK$48.9 million in 2012),
mainly representing the furniture, signage and IRIS system provided to new
stores amounting to HK$5.8 million, equipment upgrade for franchise amounting
to HK$7.0 million, upgrades to its PRC and Taiwan IT system amounting to
approximately HK$4.6 million and the renovation to branches amounting to
approximately HK$2.3 million.
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Outlook

The PRC government's continued plan for urbanization and household income
growth should continue to fuel the long-term growth of China's domestic
consumption which will be positive for the consumer market. However, results
in short term are expected to remain volatile.

As such, we will continue to pursue a prudent growth strategy and implement
the following strategies so as to proactively strengthen our position as a leading
skin care brand and spa operator in the Greater China Region.

- We will focus on increasing the productivity of our existing franchisees
by (a) building up direct management model, and (b) franchisee’s
background image and service to enhance our overall brand image.

- We will enhance our operational efficiency by streamlining our
organisational structure, implementing a more integrated go-to-market
process and improving our cost-controls measures.

- We will focus our marketing and promotional efforts on (a) empowering
celebrity influence, (b) attracting young customer via E-commerce, and (c)
execution of trade marketing events to enhance sell-through sales.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TRER/BE

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group's
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited firmly believes that strong corporate
governance is the foundation to delivering the corporate objective of
maximizing return to its stakeholders over the long term. The core of the
governance structure is an effective and qualified Board of Directors (the “Board”)
which is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
sound internal control and effective risk management to enhance transparency,
accountability, integrity and honesty, in order to earn the confidence from
our shareholders and other stakeholders and to safeguard the interests of
shareholders.

The Board had adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines (the “CG Guidelines”)
(available on the Company's website: www.nblife.com/ir) which gives guidance
on how corporate governance principles are applied to the Company.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year 2013, save as explained and
disclosed hereinbelow, the Company applied the principles and complied with
all the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company has also adopted the
Board Diversity Policy pursuant to code provision A.5.6 of the Code as amended

1 September 2013. The following summarises the Company’s corporate
governance practices and explains deviations, if any, from the Code.

In addition to complying with applicable statutory requirements, we aim to
continually review and enhance our corporate governance practices in light of
local and international best practices.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Coniinued) AN A AR ERER ()
A. DIRECTORS A. EE
A1.  The Board/Directors’ Attendance Records Al BEE EEHERE
The Board currently comprises twelve members, consisting of EEeHAMNEESEN  E4
three Executive Directors, five Non-Executive Directors and four FE3RITES  SBIEPITESH
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board meets four times AR IEHITES - EEEEHF
during a year as a minimum and, during 2013, it met seven times. ELBTNRGE  R_T—=F
Details of composition of each of the Board Committees, and the BOTEREZ - BHE_T—=F
Directors' attendance records at the meetings of the Board and TZA=+T—BLEFEA - &FEE
each of the Board Committees and the general meeting during the FZEE v KEHAEFIBUREA
year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows: EENEEEEE SEEFZEE
EERNBRREARNE 2 HE D
T
Remuneration Audit  Executive Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee Committee ~ Board  General Training
Meeting  Meeting  Meeting ~ Meeting Meeting Meeting  Courses
¥MZEE ENZEE H{TZEE REZEE E3g RREE
6 e EE g 8%  Ag EHIRE
Executive Directors WiTES
D TSAIYen-Yu” ERIBLY 0/ /a 1 0 6/7 01 Notea
TEm fizta
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta FHELE n/a n/a L n/a 6/7 01 Notea
\ ~Em  TER MER fidta
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng? g te 1/1 a n/a a " 01 Notea
T™ER  TER  TER fia
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT MRS 1 a 33 22 /7 1/ Noteb
&R fitzth
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan BETRL n/a n/a n/a n/a 07 01 Noteb
~ER MER TEA Mizkn
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina RERKT a 4/4 n/a a 7 01 Notea
TER  MER fizta
Mr.POON Yee Man Awin AR A n/a 3 113 3 577 01 Notea
\ TEm TEm ifia
Dr.SU SheHsyu® BaAELe n/a 33 33 n/a 70 Notea
TER ifia
Independent Non-Executive Directors BV FHTES
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER Francis GOUTENMACHERZL £ 2/2 4/4 23 22 717 11 %)tes b
fralkb
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON EES e 21 4/4 na 12 6/7 1/1 Notes agh
TER Miztakh
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long BRinlE e 11 3/4 n/a Wb, 5/7 01 Notea
TER Mitta
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BHIRE 22 4/4 13 12 6/7 0N hﬁl@t\g 3
Tita

Those Directors who were not able to attend the Board and
Committee meetings in person had appointed another Director
as their respective proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.
For indication purpose, attendance by proxy was not counted as
attendance by the Director himself/herself in the above summary.
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Report on Corporate Governance
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TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

The Board/Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)
Notes:

m Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 7 February 2013. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held on or before 7 February 2013.

2) Dr. SU Chien-Cheng was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 7 February 2013. One Remuneration
Committee meeting was held on or after 7 February 2013

3) Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was redesignated as a Non-Executive Director and
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 7 February 2013.
Three Audit Committee meetings were held on or after 7 February
2013.

(@) Attended training course conducted by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu that was organized by the Company.

(b) Attended other continuous professional development training
course(s) not organized by the Group.

The Company generally gives notice and draft agenda of regular
Board meetings at least 14 days in advance. Directors are consulted
to include any matter in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
For other Board and committee meetings, notice is generally given
pursuant to the Articles of Association and the respective Charters
of the committees.

The agenda of Board meeting or committee meeting and the
accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors at least
three days before each Board meeting or committee meeting
for their review and to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company so as to
enable them to make informed decisions.

All Directors have access to the Chief Legal Advisor and Company
Secretary who are responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advising the Board on corporate governance
and compliance matters.
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TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Al.

The Board/Directors’ Attendance Records (Continued)

Draft minutes will be sent to Directors and Board Committees
members within a reasonable time (generally within 14 days)
after each meeting and are available for review and inspection by
Directors and Board Committee members.

The CG Guidelines allow Directors to take independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses.

Instead of by way of circulation, full Board meetings will be held
for any material transaction with connected persons. Independent
non-executive Directors who, and whose associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such

meeting.

The Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”) provide for
voting and quorum requirements conforming with the Code

requirements.

We have also arranged appropriate insurance cover on Directors'

and officers'liabilities in respect of legal actions against them arising

from corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A2.

Chairperson, Vice Chairmen and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu serves as the Chairperson, while Mr. Patrick Thomas
SIEWERT and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta are the Vice-Chairmen. Ms. CHANG
Karen Yi Fen serves as the Chief Executive Officer. The roles of
the Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer are separate. The
Chairperson focuses on Group strategic and Board issues while the
Chief Executive Officer has the overall responsibility for operations
and development.

The Chairperson has a clear responsibility to provide the whole
Board with all information relevant to the discharge of the Board's
responsibilities.

Under code provision A.2.7 of the Code, the Chairman should
at least annually hold meetings with non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) without the
executive directors present. Since the Chairperson is also an
Executive Director of the Company, respective Independent
Non-Executive Directors are members of Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and two
Independent Non-Executive Directors are also members of
the Executive Committee, it was considered there were ample
opportunities for the Chairperson to communicate with Non-
Executive Directors (including Independent Non-Executive
Directors), therefore no separate meetings were held between the
Chairperson and the Non-Executive Directors.

EANNS]

A.

MEXERE

2 XED

EE (B

A2.

IF - BIEEREFEITE
EHmEBTHETR  BaEELE
RERELLRNBEIRE - RIE
SRETHEERFATE - TREE
FHRTEZACHTRAALEE -
ITREINAEERERESTES
S MEFRTEAZHAREE
KEREFER o

IRARREINEBEEGNE
RUERBITEFERE LA A
x o

BIEFAEA27G  EEEZLE
FHIFPTES (BIEELIENT
BE)BIT-RIERTEEHE
V&% A ERNERART
%ﬂﬁ%% o %%%é%ﬁﬁt%ﬂﬁ%?fﬂ
REVEZES FHNEZEEGRRESR
ZEEZE  UEMEBBIIERTT
BEENRPTEZEEEEZE - AA
ARR - EFEFRNTES (B
BYFATES) EERRBRHE
g AREFFEERTESLLE
BITBNGH -



Report on Corporate Governance

TS

&R

E/n#

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
DIRECTORS (Continued)

A.

A3.

Board composition

The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information”
on page 2 of this Annual Report. Composition of the Board, by
category of Directors, including names of the Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the

Company from time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board, at all
times, met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, representing at least one-third of the Board (there are
four independent non-executive Directors out of twelve Directors)
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Independence of Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received from each of our Independent Non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. We consider
all Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4.

Appointments, re-election and removal

Directors with service contracts, including Executive and Non-
Executive Directors, usually serve three-year terms, and are subject
to re-election.

Under code provision A4.1 of the Code, the Non-Executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Mr.
Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina, Ms. FENG
Janine Junyuan and Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin (all are Non-Executive
Directors) did not enter into service contracts with the Company as
they are employees of Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited, an
entity established in Hong Kong. Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors
Limited has offices in Hong Kong, Mumbai, Seoul, Beijing, Shanghai,
Singapore and Sydney. Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited
acts as the Asian investment advisor to various Asian focused
investment funds managed by The Carlyle Group.

In accordance with Article 100 of the Articles, any new Director
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting of
the Company after his/her appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

In addition, in accordance with Article 117 of the Articles, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then a number not less than one-third,
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu,
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina and Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu will retire by rotation according to the Articles and all
of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A4,

A5.

Appointments, re-election and removal (Continued)

To further enhance accountability, any appointment of an
Independent Non-Executive Director who has served on the Board
for more than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution
to be approved by shareholders. We will state in the notice of
the AGM the reason why we consider the Independent Non-
Executive Director is still independent and our recommendation
to shareholders to vote in favour of the re-election of such
Independent Non-Executive Director. During the year ended 31
December 2013, none of the existing Independent Non-Executive
Directors has served on the Board for more than nine years.

Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee now comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors, one Executive Director and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Chairman), Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Dr.
TSAI'Yen-Yu and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT respectively.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 1 September
2013, aiming at setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Company's board of directors and having an appropriate proportion
of directors who have direct experience in our key markets, with
different ethnic background, of both genders, reflecting our
business strategy. All appointment will be based on merit.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for, including but not
limited to, determining the policy for the nomination of Directors,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board
annually and make recommendation to the Board on selection of
candidates for directorships pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy.
It also assesses the independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors. Full terms of reference (Nomination Committee Charter)
are available on the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir and the
Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A5.

Aé.

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Company provided sufficient resources for the Nomination
Committee to perform its duties. Where necessary, the Nomination
Committee could seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses, to perform its duties.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in year 2013.
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination
Committee had considered and recommended, among other
things, the re-designation of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu as Non-Executive
Director and her appointment as Audit Committee member as well
as the appointment of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng as a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 7 February 2013.

During year 2013, the Nomination Committee conducted an
annual review of the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board pursuant to the CG Guidelines and code provision A5.2
of the Code. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and no

material matter was identified during the year under review.

Responsibilities of Directors

On appointment, new Directors will be given comprehensive
orientation training by the Company’s legal counsel, to explain the
responsibilities and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all Directors
updated on Listing Rules and other statutory requirements.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors are members of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Two out of four Independent Non-Executive Directors are also
members of the Executive Committee.

The attendance records of individual Directors for all Board and
Board Committee meetings in 2013 are set out under “The Board/
Directors' Attendance Records” on page 27 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

Aé6.

Responsibilities of Directors (Continued)

Securities Transactions made by Directors and Employees

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’

securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that the required standards of the Model Code has been
complied with throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
Arrangements will be made for adoption of written guidelines
equally stringent as the Model Code in respect of securities
transactions by employees of the Company who are likely to be
in possession of unpublished inside information of the Company
pursuant to code provision A6.4. No incident of noncompliance
against the Model Code by the Company’s relevant employees has
been noted after making reasonable enquiry.

Continuing Development for Directors

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in order to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31
December 2013, The Company organized two Directors’ trainings
(one in Hong Kong and one in Taiwan) on directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance and regulatory development.

There were compliance manuals provided to each of the Directors
and members of senior management, which set out (a) the principal
continuing obligations of the Company and the Directors as a result
of the listing of the securities of the Company on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange; and (b) the systems and procedures that the
Company, its Directors and senior management should follow in
order to ensure compliance with such obligations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
A. DIRECTORS (Continued)

A7.

Supply of and access to information
The Company aims to continually improve on the quality and
timeliness of the dissemination of information to Directors.

Board papers were normally sent to all Directors at least three days
before the date of the Board/Board Committee meetings.

Senior management members are from time to time brought into
formal and informal contact with the Board at Board meetings and
other events.

Board papers and minutes are made available for inspection by the
Directors and Board Committee members.

B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION

B1.

Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committee now comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors, one Executive Director and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Chairperson), Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER, Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long, Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing, Dr. SU
Chien-Cheng and Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT respectively.

Remuneration Committee determines the policy and structure for
the remuneration of Executive Directors, assessing performance of
Executive Directors and approving the terms of Executive Directors’
service contracts, and determining or making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration packages of individual
Executive and Non-Executive Directors and senior management.

In conducting its work in relation to the remuneration of Directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee ensured
that no director was involved in determining his or her own
remuneration. It also ensured that remuneration levels should
be sufficient to attract and retain directors to run the Company
successfully.

The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are set
out in its terms of reference. Full terms of reference (Remuneration
Committee Charter) are available on the Company’s website:
www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND BOARD EVALUATION (Continued)

B2.

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2013. During the year, the Remuneration
Committee has reviewed and approved the proposed bonus
awards for all employees; reviewed and recommended granting of
share options to the Chief Executive Officer and senior employees
under the Company’s Share Option Scheme. With reference to the
Remuneration Committee Charter, the Remuneration Committee
members had carefully reviewed and considered the contribution
of each of the Directors to the Group, the Directors’ experience
in the beauty and spa business and the market rate paid by

comparable companies.

Independent professional advice would be sought to supplement

internal resources where appropriate.

C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C1.

Financial reporting

Management provided explanation and information to the Board to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval.

Directors are provided with reports on the management’s strategic
plans, updates on lines of business, financial objectives, plans and
actions. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing accounts for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the results and cash flow for that period. In preparing the accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have:

approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants;

selected and applied consistently appropriate accounting

policies;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

C1.

Cc2.

Financial reporting (Continued)
made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report set out on pages 73
to 74.

Management provided all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, and the financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

The Board will present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment to annual and interim reports, other announcements
in relation to inside information and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and report to regulators as well
as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

Internal controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. Management regularly
reviews the effectiveness of the risk management system and
system of internal controls and compliance with best practices. The
Chief Executive Officer and Finance Vice-President also report to the
Audit Committee on key findings regarding internal controls. The
Audit Committee, in turn, communicates any material issues to the
full Board.

The Board's review will also consider the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget.

P
C.

DNEINTEEERER ()
BERES (8)

C1.

C2.

B EE ()
AT AR M R
5

BB EREERIRE -

B EREETIEL 2 BAH
REBARTAAZ B REERE
ER-

ERESANESTEXBRHTEN
B BIBBARRZRE - M
BARARBRZ AERSGRBEZ
AHE AR RAREFBITREZ

EERR  KEHRERHIERE

MPBBROEFELEELER
i) o

EXeeraFEREEPHRE
RELTHRAUNRERTRERR
NEEHZEMAEREMHBEE
B REEERRZ@E MR
FIRERTHREZERA - HQ7]
RBEL T BWRASERZ
Al e

M EBEEEE

EXerMBANMERRS X
BMAEKR - BRES T PR
[\ B 3R R e e R BB BE AR R AT 2 K
B ARBRTHERENERER
oo s BERMITE MM BEIR
BNeREZZE SRS AN
ERcIERRNR  BRZEGHE
EEREHEEZEREFTINE -

BN EEGEITRAE - TEE
BARREG R KRB RS BEe
HZER BIBEENMER UKk
BIMEX2EIREREBEE
BB



Report on Corporate Governance

e SO

TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Cc2.

G.

Internal controls (Continued)

During the year, the Board has conducted reviews of the internal
control system and considered the internal control system of the
Group has been implemented effectively.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee now comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors and two Non-Executive Directors, namely
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman), Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER,
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing
Christina and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu respectively.

Draft minutes are sent to members of the Audit Committee within
14 days of each meeting. None of the Audit Committee members is

a former partner of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee is authorised by the Board to investigate
any activity within its terms of reference; to seek any information it
requires from any employee and all employees are directed to co-
operate with any request made by the Audit Committee; to obtain
outside legal or other independent professional advice; and to
secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise to their meetings if necessary. Sufficient resources are
provided to the Audit Committee to discharge its duty. The Audit
Committee is also responsible to perform corporate governance
functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the Code.

Full terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) explaining
the Audit Committee’s role and authority are available on the
Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
C.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

.

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2013. The Audit Committee reviewed the annual
results in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012 and interim
results for the six months ended 30 June 2013 and significant
issues on the financial reporting and compliance procedures and
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties. During the year 2013, the Audit Committee also
met with the external auditors twice to discuss audit issues, before
recommending to the Board for approval of publication of results.

There is an agreed procedure for Audit Committee members to
take independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

There were no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Audit Committee did not have any different view from the
Board regarding the selection and re-appointment of external
auditors.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board (which in
turn endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming AGM, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu be
reappointed as the external auditors for year 2014.

There was a whistle-blowing policy which form part of the
employee’s handbook.

Auditor’s remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Group's
auditors, in respect of audit services amounted to HK$3,643,000 and
non-audit services amounted to HK$25,000 which were reviewed
and approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
D1. Management functions
There is a defined schedule of matters reserved for full Board
decision, including:

- Long-term objectives and strategies;

= Extension of Group activities into new business areas;

- Preliminary announcements of interim and final results;
- Material banking facilities;

- Material acquisitions and disposals;

- Material connected transactions; and

- Annual internal controls assessment.

D2. Board Committees
The Board has established four Board Committees (Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee, Executive Committee and
Nomination Committee) that undertake work on its behalf with
specific terms of reference setting out their roles and functions
available at the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

Board Committees present their respective reports to the Board
after each meeting, which address their work and findings.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee described above, details of the Executive
Committee are set out below.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
D. DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)

D2.

Board Committees (Continued)

Executive Committee

Executive Committee now comprises three Non-Executive
Directors, one Executive Director and two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Chairman),
Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. Francis
GOUTENMACHER and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing respectively.

Executive Committee is primarily responsible for formulating
business policies, making decisions on key business issues and
policies, facilitating the approval of certain corporate actions and
exercising the powers and authority delegated by the Board in
respect of matters arising between regularly scheduled Board
meetings, and to review financial, marketing, retail, operation and
other business performance, as well as to review and approve
annual budget and key performance indicators (KPIs) and track

performance.

The Executive Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the attendance records are set out
under “The Board/Directors' Attendance Records” on page 27 of this
annual report.
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Report on Corporate Governance
TEERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

ET.

Effective communication

Separate resolutions are proposed at the meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Chairperson of the Board and Chairmen of the Board Committees or
their respective delegates are requested to attend the forthcoming
AGM.

There was one AGM held since the issue of the last annual report.

Code provision E.1.2 of the Code stipulates that the Chairman
of the Board of a listed issuer should attend the Annual General
Meeting. Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, the Chairperson of the Board, was unable
to attend the Company’s Annual General Meeting held on 10 May
2013 (2013 AGM") due to other overseas commitments. The Board
had arranged for Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, the Vice-Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the
Group, who is well versed in all business activities and operations of
the Group, to attend and chair the 2013 AGM on behalf of Dr. TSAI
Yen-Yu and to respond to shareholders’ questions.

Under code provision A6.7 of the Code, the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors should attend
general meetings of the Company. Two Independent Non-
Executive Directors, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER (Members of the
Audit, Remuneration, Executive and Nomination Committees) and
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Chairperson of Remuneration Committee
and members of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)
attended the 2013 AGM. The remaining Directors were absent from
that Annual General Meeting due to other business commitments.

The Company will optimize the planning of general meetings,
give adequate time to all Directors to accommodate their work
arrangement and provide all necessary support for their presence
and participation in general meetings such that all Directors will be
able to attend future general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

ET.

Effective communication (Continued)
The Company arranged for the notice to shareholders for the 2013
AGM at least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

The procedure for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting can be found in Article 73 of the Memorandum and
Articles of Associations of the Company, which is available at the
Company’s website (www.nblife.com/ir) and the Stock Exchange's
website.

Documents relating to the Procedures for Nomination of
Directors by Shareholders and the Shareholder Communication
Policy are available for download from the Company's website

(www.nblife.com/ir).

There is a dedicated section of “Shareholder Services” in the
Company's website: www.nblife.com/ir to provide comprehensive
information related to shareholders.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: 958 Changping Road, Jing'an District, Shanghai, China

Fax: +86 21 52560455

Email: ir@nblife.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by

law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any change to its Articles. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Articles is also available on the Company's website:
www.nblife.com/ir and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

E2.

Voting by poll

Procedures for conducting a poll were set out in the notice of
the 2013 AGM. These procedures were also explained at the
commencement of the 2013 AGM.

A representative of the Company’s Share Registrar, Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, was appointed as scrutineer during the 2013
AGM.

Poll results were published on the same day following the 2013
AGM and posted on the website of the Stock Exchange and that of
the Company at www.nblife.com/ir.

Investor relations
We consider it important to have dialogues with institutional
shareholders based on mutual understanding of objectives.

Additional shareholders’ services can be found in the investor
relations section of the Company’s website: www.nblife.com/ir.

F. COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. CHAN Yan Kwan Andy served as the Group Financial Controller and

Company Secretary of the Company during the year 2013 and resigned

on 11 December 2013. Ms. HO Siu Pik who meets the requirements under

Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules was appointed as the Company Secretary on

11 December 2013. Ms. Ho of Tricor Services Limited, is an external service

provider, her main contact persons at the Company are Ms. CHEN, Li-Ting
(Finance Vice President) and Ms. Jenny ZHU (Chief Legal Advisor).

Both the former and existing Company Secretaries have confirmed that

they have undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional

training during the year 2013.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EENRSAREEERE

CHAIRPERSON AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. TSAI YEN-YU (ALIAS TSAI YEN-PIN) (“DR. TSAI")

Aged 66, founder and Chairperson of the Company, the wife of Mr. LEE Ming-
Ta (Vice-Chairman and Executive Director) and mother of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
(Executive Director) and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director), is an Executive
Director and member of both the Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee. She has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY
(HONG KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001. Dr. TSAI has been awarded
numerous honours, positions and prizes such as:

Honorary Doctor of Commerce, Dewey University, the US.A.
Fellowship of Asian Knowledge Management Association
Female Entrepreneur Award by Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur of the Year”

Taiwan's Top Ten Most Influential Female Entrepreneur awarded by
CommonWealth Magazine

Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Taiwan awarded by Taiwan Women's
Business Association

“Top 100 Chinese Entrepreneurs” of China

“Bai Yu Lan” Award by the Shanghai City Government

Principal consultant in the Chinese Ministry of Labor and the programme
"Ji Qing Chuang Ye" of CCTV

Principal consultant of cosmetology arbitration panel in the Chinese
Ministry of Law

st Pacemaker Award and Education Award of Beauty and Cosmetics
Industry in China

Chairman of Association of Beauty Technique in Taipei

Chairman of Association of Beauty and Hairstyle in Taiwan

VICE CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. LEE MING-TA (ALIAS LEE MING-TAH)

aged 66, is the Vice-Chairman and an Executive Director of the Group. He is the
husband of Dr. TSAI, whom is the Chairperson and an Executive Director of the
Group. Mr. LEE is also the father of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director) and
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (Non-Executive Director). Prior to joining the Group in 1993, Mr.
LEE had worked for various financial institutions at senior management level for
over 10 years in corporate management and staff training. Mr. LEE graduated in
Fengchia University in Taiwan with a bachelor degree in Banking and Insurance.
He has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG
KONG) COMPANY LIMITED since 16 May 2001.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EERSREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU CHIEN-CHENG

Aged 42, the son of Dr. TSAI (Chairperson and an Executive Director) and Mr. LEE
Ming-Ta (Vice-Chairman and Executive Director) and he is the elder brother of Dr.
SU Sh-Hsyu who is also a Non-Executive Director of the Company. Dr. SU Chien-
Cheng was a Non-Executive Director and re-designated as Executive Director
effective from 15 December 2011. He is involved in the financial management
and strategic management of the group at Board level. He is also a member
of the Remuneration Committee since 7 February 2013. Dr. SU Chien-Cheng
graduated from the University of Westminster in UK with a master degree of
business administration and obtained his PhD in Business Administration in
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. He joined the Group in 1999. He
has also been a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG)
COMPANY LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16 May 2001
and 11 July 2008, respectively.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

DR. SU SH-HSYU

Aged 40, is the daughter of Dr. TSAI (Chairperson and an Executive Director)
and Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice-Chairman and Executive Director) and the younger
sister of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (Executive Director). Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been an
Executive Director since 21 September 2004 until she was redesignated as a
Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009, was further redesignated as
an Executive Director on 15 December 2011 and was redesignated as a Non-
Executive Director on 7 February 2013. She is also a member of both the
Audit Committee and Executive Committee of the Company. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu
graduated from the London School of Economics with a Master of Science
degree in industrial relations and human resources management and obtained
her PhD in international and comparative education from Columbia University
in New York, United States. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu had been actively engaged in the
marketing and business development of the Natural Beauty Group in Taiwan
and China during the period from 2004 to 2009. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu is involved in
strategic management of the group at Board level. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu has also been
a director of NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY (HONG KONG) COMPANY
LIMITED and Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 16 May 2001 and 11
July 2008 respectively.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles

EERSREEERE

VICE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR: MR. PATRICK THOMAS SIEWERT

Aged 58, is currently a managing director of the Carlyle Group based in Hong
Kong. Mr. SIEWERT has been working at Carlyle since April 2007. Mr. SIEWERT
currently sits on the board of directors of a variety of companies in which
funds of Carlyle have investments, including, without limitation, China Fishery
Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Singapore (stock
code: BOZ). Mr. SIEWERT also sits on the board of directors of Avery Dennison
Corporation, a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock code:
AVY), Computime Group Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 00320) and Mondeléz International, Inc, a
company listed on the NASDAQ (stock code: MDLZ). Mr. SIEWERT has also been
the chairman of Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited since August 2008.
Prior to joining Carlyle, Mr. SIEWERT worked at The Coca-Cola Company from
2001 to 2007 and was group president and chief operating officer Asia, and was
previously president of Kodak Professional and senior vice president of Eastman
Kodak Company. Mr. SIEWERT received a Master of Science degree in service
management from Rochester Institute of Technology and a Bachelor of Science
degree in business administration from Elmhurst College. He was appointed as
the Group's Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009 and Vice Chairman
on 1 February 2010. He also serves as the Chairman of Executive Committee and
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. From August 2010 to 31 December 2012, Mr. SIEWERT was a Non-
Executive Director of C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (stock code: 00043). Mr. SIEWERT has
been a director of Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 30 April 2013. He
is also a director of CA NB Limited and Starsign International Limited.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. POON YEE MAN ALWIN

Aged 43, is currently a director of Carlyle Asia Investment Advisors Limited based
in Hong Kong and is focused on buyout opportunities in Asia. He has been
working at Carlyle since 2007. Prior to joining Carlyle, Mr. POON spent close to
ten years at Olympus Capital Holdings Asia, an Asia-based private equity fund,
where he was a managing director and a member of the investment committee.
Prior to that, Mr. POON was also a management consultant with Bain & Company
based in Hong Kong. Since August 2010 until 31 December 2012, Mr. POON
was an alternate director to Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT for his non-executive
directorship with C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 00043).
Mr. POON received his Master of Science in operations research and industrial
engineering from University of California, Berkeley and his Bachelor of Science
in computer science from Cornell University. He was appointed as the Group's
Non-Executive Director on 17 May 2012. He is also a member of the Executive
Committee of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. NG SHIEU YEING CHRISTINA

Aged 41, is currently a director of the Carlyle Group based in Hong Kong. Ms.
NG has been working at Carlyle since 1998. At Carlyle, Ms. NG has overseen
investments in, among others, Taiwan Broadband Communications Co,, Ltd,
Eastern Broadcasting Company Limited, China Pacific Insurance (Group)
Company Limited, kbro Co., Ltd. and the Company. Prior to joining Carlyle,
Ms. NG worked at Merill Lynch and Exor Asia, the direct investment arm of
the Agnelli Group of Italy. Ms. NG received a Bachelor of Science degree in
management science from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. She was
appointed as the Group’s Non-Executive Director on 24 November 2009. She is
also a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. She has been a director
of Natural Beauty China Holding Limited since 4 February 2013.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. FENG JANINE JUNYUAN

Aged 45, is currently a managing director of the Carlyle Group based in Hong
Kong and is focused on Asian buyout and growth capital investments in sectors
including consumer, financial services, industrial and healthcare. Ms. FENG
has been working at Carlyle since 1998, and has been responsible for several
investments in China. Ms. FENG currently serves as a non-executive director of
Haier Electronics Group Co. Ltd, a company listed on the Main Board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 01169). From June 2007 to May 2013, she
was a non-executive director of China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co. Ltd, a
company listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 02601). Prior
to joining Carlyle, Ms. FENG was a senior associate at Credit Suisse First Boston's
investment banking group in New York. Ms. FENG received a Master of Business
Administration degree from Harvard Business School and a Bachelor of Arts
degree from Middlebury College. She was appointed as the Group’s Non-
Executive Director on 24 November 2009.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. FRANCIS GOUTENMACHER

Aged 72, had worked closely with some of the most prestigious names in the
business, including Cartier, Van Cleef & Arpels, Piaget, Vacheron Constantin, Alfred
Dunhill and Jaeger-LeCoultre, etc. He had also been the Managing Director of
Cartier France, the CEO of Piaget International, and the President of The Hong
Kong Watch Importers’ Association from 2004 to 2006. Mr. GOUTENMACHER was
also the former CEO of Richemont Asia Pacific, one of the world's leading luxury
groups and in 2006, retired from Richemont and established Gouten Consulting
Limited to help luxury brands with their marketing and strategic development
of their luxury brands in the challenging and rapidly emerging market of Asia-
Pacific. Mr. GOUTENMACHER is currently an independent non-executive director
of 1T Limited (stock code: 00999) and Louis Xlll Holdings Limited (stock code:
00577), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He is also a director of Gouten Consulting Limited, an advisor to several local
luxury groups, and sits on the board of directors of several non-listed companies.
He was appointed as the Group'’s Independent Non-Executive Director on 1
February 2010. He is also members of the Audit Committee, Remuneration

Committee, Executive Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MS. SU-MEI THOMPSON

Aged 47, is currently the Chief Executive Officer of The Women’s Foundation, a
leading Non-Government Organisation promoting the advancement of women
in Hong Kong. She was invited by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong to join the
Equal Opportunities Commission in 2013. Previously, she held senior regional
management positions at Walt Disney Television Asia-Pacific, the Financial Times
where she served as Managing Director for Asia and was a member of the FT's
Global Management Board, and Christie’s. She started her career as a corporate
finance lawyer at Linklaters and served in the firm's London, Paris and Hong
Kong offices. She had also held board positions with China Cablecom Holdings
Ltd. and The Business Standard. Ms. THOMPSON is a Co-founder and Advisory
Board Member of Intelligence Squared Asia, a Director of Opera Hong Kong and
a Council Member of The Cheltenham Ladies College in the United Kingdom.
She was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Group
on 1 February 2010. She is also the Chairman of Remuneration Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. She obtained her Master of Business Administration (Dean’s
List) degree from IMD in Lausanne, Switzerland, a first-class Masters degree in
law from Oxford University, England and a BA degree in law from Cambridge
University, England and is a UK qualified solicitor.
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Directors’and Senior Management Profiles
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. CHEN RUEY-LONG

Aged 65, obtained his Bachelor degree of Economics from National Chung-
Hsing University in 1970. He was the Minister of the Ministry of Economic
Affairs of Taiwan from 2006 to 2008. Prior to that, he held various positions and
represented the Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan in various countries and
was based in Switzerland from 1987 to 1996 and in Belgium from 1974 to 1979.
Mr. CHEN was the Board Chairman of the Institute for Information Industry in
Taiwan from 2008 to 2009, and he is currently the Board Chairman of SINOCON
Industrial Standards Foundation in Taiwan, the Board Chairman of Powerchip
Technology Corporation in Taiwan and an independent director of Bank of
Panhsin in Taiwan and a director of Teknowledge Development Corporation
in Taiwan. He is a director of HannStar Board Corporation (stock code: 5469)
and Asia Cement Corporation (stock code: 1102), and an independent director
of Formosa Chemicals and Fibre Corporation (Stock code: 1326) and China
Petrochemical Development Corporation, Ltd. (Stock code: 1314), which are
listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He is also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of E-Ton Solar Tech. Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 3452), listed on the Taiwan
GreTai Securities Market. He was appointed as the Group’s Independent Non-
Executive Director on 1 February 2010. He is also the Chairman of Audit
Committee and member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

MR. YANG TZE-KAING

Aged 59, obtained his Master of Business Administration degree from University
of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign, U.S.AA. in 1982 and his PhD in Strategic
Management from National Chengchi University of Taiwan in 1987. He is
currently the Chairman of Yangtze Associates, the President of Huiyang Private
Equity Fund Co, Ltd, the Supervisor of ASUSTeK Computer Inc, a Director of
RITEK Corporation, an Independent Director of ASROCK Incorporation, a director
of Chien Kuo Construction Co, Ltd, an Independent Director of DBS Bank
(Taiwan) Ltd. and the Chairman of Financial Literacy & Education Association.
Mr. YANG was also the Deputy Minister of the Ministry of Finance of Taiwan,
the Managing Director and Acting Chairman of Bank of Taiwan, the President
of China Development Industrial Bank of Taiwan and an associate professor
in National Chengchi University and National Chiao Tung University. He was
appointed as the Group's Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 February
2010. He is also the Chairman of Nomination Committee and member of
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Executive Committee of the

Company.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER:

MS. CHANG KAREN YI FEN

Aged 50, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group effective
from 2 January 2013. Prior to join the Group, Ms. CHANG worked for Pou Sheng
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 03813) from 2007 to April 2012,
of which she had served as the Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
from 2007 to 2009 and Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director from
2009 to April 2012. Ms. CHANG had had many years of financial management
and investment banking experiences gained from working with Credit Suisse,
Merrill Lynch, Jardine Fleming in Shanghai, China and Hong Kong and KPMG
in Washington D.C. and Los Angeles in the United States. She had also worked
for Semiconductor Manufacturer International Corporation from 2003 to 2004
as Assistant Vice President of Finance. She currently serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Sun Art Retail Group Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock code: 06808). Ms. CHANG graduated with a
Bachelor degree in Arts in English Literature from Fu-Jen Catholic University in
Taiwan in 1986 and a Master of Business Administration degree from the George
Washington University in Washington D.C. in the United States in 1998.

FINANCIAL VICE-PRESIDENT:

MS. CHEN, LI-TING

Aged 44, joined the Group as the Finance Vice-President in June 2013 and is
in full charge of finance strategy. Ms. CHEN graduated from Public Finance
Department of National Chung Hsin University. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. CHEN worked as finance chief for various well-known companies, such
as wwwins Isobar, the advertising agency under Aegis group, Chrysler Group
Taiwan Sales Limited, and etc. Ms. CHEN has abundant financial management
experience.

COMPANY SECRETARY:

MS. HO SIU PIK

Aged 50, is the company secretary of the Company for the purpose of Rule
8.17 of the Listing Rules. Ms. Ho is a director of Corporate Services Division of
Tricor Services Limited and a fellow member of both The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Ms. Ho has over 20 years of experience in the company secretarial
area. She is currently the joint company secretary of SITC International Holdings
Company Limited, Yashili International Holdings Ltd and China Molybdenum
Co, Ltd, and the company secretary of Sun Art Retail Group Limited and China
Polymetallic Mining Limited, all companies are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHEE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty and
aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments, beauty and
spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 75.

An interim dividend of HK$0.01 per share amounting to HK$20,021,009.32 was
paid to the shareholders during the year. At the Board meeting held on 26 March
2014, the Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.0163
per share to the shareholders whose names are recorded on the register of
members on 30 May 2014, amounting to approximately HK$32,634,000. The
proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 16 May 2014. Details of the dividends
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed on the following dates:
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CLOSURES OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

In order to qualify for attending and voting at the 2014 Annual General Meeting
or to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on the final lodging dates mentioned in the
table above.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales and purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total
turnover and purchases for the year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2013 were fair valued by
an independent firm of professional property valuers. The net increase in fair
value of investment properties, which has been credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, amounted to
HKS$196,000.

Details of movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (alias Dr. TSAI Yen-Pin)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (alias Mr. LEE Ming-Tah)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (redesignated as a Non-Executive Director on 7 February 2013)

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan
Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

In accordance with Article 117 of the Company's articles of association, one-third
of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then a number not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting. Dr. TSAIl Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, Mr. Patrick
Thomas SIEWERT and Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina shall retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Rules (the "Listing Rules") Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange"). The Company considers

all of the independent non-executive directors independent.
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE-CHAIRMEN AND BOARD
COMMITTEES

The Chairperson and Vice-Chairmen of the Board and the members of each
of the committees of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Chairperson and Vice-Chairmen

Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice-Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Vice-Chairman of the Board)

Members of Audit Committee:

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long (Chairman)

Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu (appointed on 7 February 2013)

Members of Remuneration Committee:

Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON (Chairperson)

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing

Dr. SU Chien-Cheng (appointed on 7 February 2013)

Members of Executive Committee:

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT (Chairman)
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu

Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu

Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaiang

Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin

Members of Nomination Committee:

Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing (Chairman)
Dr. TSAl'Yen-Yu

Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON

Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long
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CHAIRPERSON, VICE-CHAIRMEN AND BOARD FFE BHIEXEEREEZEZES )

COMMITTEES (Continued)

The compositions of the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the N REFINE E R i%?'ﬁé‘ﬁ Y - RARIEZ
executive committee and the nomination committee of the Company as wellas ZEE - HFEZEE S - TZ 82 RIEREE
GZHEMANBARARTERREIERE

the Chairperson and Vice-Chairmen of the Company as of date of this report are
set out below:

Board Committees

ExZ8¢g
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Audit  Remuneration Executive  Nomination
Committee Committee Committee Committee
Board of Directors o BRZBE FMEZEe WTZEE REZEE
Executive Directors YITES
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (Chairperson of the Board) BEEREEL - = M M
(EEEXR)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta (Vice-Chairman of the Board) ~ ZXRREE A4 - = = =
(ZEZgRIER)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng EREHIE T - M - =
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT MM L = M C M
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (BEE2REFE)
Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan HETZ L - = = =
Ms. NG Shieu Yeing Christina REEBLLT M - - -
Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin AR - - M -
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu BEAE T M = M =
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER Francis GOUTENMACHERE 4= M M M M
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON e R M C - M
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PR ImlE S C M - M
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BIRE M M M C
Notes: BT -
C Chairman/Chairperson of Board committees C BEXLREBXF
M Member of Board committees M EEEBEZLE
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company's reserves available for distribution to shareholders were approximately
HK$268,871,000 which represents the share premium and retained profits of the
Company.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors' service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Mr. LEE Ming-Ta and Dr. Su Chien-Cheng expired on 31
December 2011 and were renewed with the same terms for another three years
from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014 with an initial annual remuneration
of HK$1,000,000, nominal HK$1 and HK$1,250,000 respectively. The Directors'
service contract entered into between the Company and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was
terminated on 31 December 2011 and was renewed for three years from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2014 with an initial annual remuneration of
HK$1,250,000. Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was redesignated as a non-executive director on 7
February 2013. By mutual agreement between the Company and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu,
the existing director service contract of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu remains unchanged until
its expiry date on 31 December 2014. The directors' service contracts entered
into between the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER, Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON, Mr.
CHEN Ruey-Long and Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing, expired on 31 January 2013 and
were renewed for another three years with the same terms commencing on 1
February 2013.

These service contracts may be terminated by either party giving to the other

one to three calendar months' notice in writing.

There was no service contract entered into between the Company and each
of Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT, Ms. FENG Janine Junyuan, Ms. NG Shieu Yeing
Christina and Mr. POON Yee Man Alwin.

KT Z Ao Ik
R-ZZE—=F+-A=+—8 ' A a&E%E
RE ARAAESIRFREZHHH A
268,871,000/ 70 * ZERE IR RE 2R MR
BRREBEF -

BEERBESHN
RAFEEREFIEL - FHEEERGER
BT Y ESERBEANERZTE——F +
ZR=T—HE®R  WERBRERS B AF
#71,000,0007% 7T + R 7T 1,250,000
LB BT —HA—ARE-T @
FTZA=1T—H1E - BRE=%F - RAFEEK
HEETII VY EERBENERZE—F
+ZA=+—B#&1E - WAFH1,250,0008 7T
B BT —F— A BEE-_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—A1t ' BE=F - HFHEBF IR
ZE—=FZAtBEATRFELNITES - IBIE
RAFIEGFBELTE T 203 - &
BRI 2REEEREEHNBERTE  &H
BE_ZT-—NE+_A=Z+—RIHBEAL-
RAFHEEZBIIFANTES (BiEFrancis
GOUTENMACHERSE A& ~ BEB X+ ~ RIG[E
EERBFILEE) FTUZEERBEH (B
RZTE—=F—A=+—RHE") SIEERKE
FEE BT —=F_A—B4EW - AH
=fFo

R E KR B EA T E SRS —
E-ABEAZEMBMTIARL

ARAFWEBRGHEESEE - BELTXLE - RF
BU T REBNXEER BRI RBEEL -

ETHEHHGFERE ‘%

.
=% —
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

The initial annual remuneration pursuant to such service contracts for the year

ended 31 December 2013 are summarised as follows:

BERKEEH @)

REBEE_Z—=F+"_A=+—HLFE iR

B EARIE A O 2 FHBRAT

Annual
Director fee

Annual increment

(HK dollars)  on Director fee Discretionary
Directortype FEHEZHRE FHES bonus
Name of Director EEME =]l (B7T) FEIER BIBTEAT
Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu BRI ED 1000000 Note (a)fffsF@  Note (b)HfzE(b)
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta FERERYE ED 1 Note @MizF@  Note (0)Fif5E(b)
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng EREEE T ED 1,250,000 Note (@)Mff7E(@)  Note (b)FizE(b)
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu BRSHBEL ED Note (c) 1250000 Note (@)fffFE@  Note (0)FffFE(b)
()
Mr. Francis GOUTENMACHER  Francis GOUTENMACHERSE 4 INED 240,000 N/AREF N/ATNE
Ms. Su-Mei THOMPSON [EEIFr-gn INED 240000 N/ATNER N/AZTE A
Mr. CHEN Ruey-Long PR IR S A INED 240000 N/ATEA N/ATNE R
Mr. YANG Tze-Kaing BFILEE INED 240,000  N/ATNEFA N/ATNE R
Total st 4,460,001
ED: Executive Director ED : ITTES
INED: Independent Non-Executive Director INED : B IEHMITES
Notes: Pt 5
(a) The annual increment of the Directors' fee for Executive Directors and Non- (@) HITEERIEPTEE  EESHETFEIE
Executive Directors shall not exceed 10% of the annual fee of preceding year. TEHBLE—F2FEWS10% °
(b) Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors may receive a bonus approved (b) FITEERIFPTESARDRESZG RN
by and at the discretion of the Board from time to time. The bonus to all Executive BHAEZEAL - L TERBAITES RIENT
Directors and Non-Executive Directors shall not exceed 15% of the audited BEZRATEHRBEBAEENZMRER 2
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of that RARGEE NEIGEEZERE R F15%
financial year of the Group.
(@] Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu was redesignated as a Non-Executive Director on 7 February 2013. (@] HaBEEITRN T —=F_AtHFATAE

BITES - REARAEHKFTHEELE TR
N2 BREE L ZRAEEERBELH
WRTE HEE-T-NF+-_A=+—8
FEBERIE -

By mutual agreement between the Company and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu, the existing
director service contract of Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu remains unchanged until its expiry date
on 31 December 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Continued)

No Director bonus was proposed nor paid for the years ended 31 December
2012 and 2013.

Save as disclosed above, no director has any unexpired service contract which is
not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

Emoluments of Senior Management
The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:—

EEREEN @
REBE-_E——ER_ZE—=F+-A=+—
HIEFE  AARWEEF RN AEME
BIELT ©

B EXIWEEESN - AEEY EBAEEF] A
AR —FARMNHE (—BREEFERI)
FTURIEZREMRBEL -

SREEABMNE M
E-ET-=F+_A=+—HBIFE 3K
EEABRFHEESZ S OFIESIOT ¢

Remuneration bands = Number of members of senior management

BREEAB AR
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 1
Total 4=t 2

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests of the Directors, the chief executive and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (the "Model Code") contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERERTHRARKSEZROE
4

R-_B—Z=ZF+-A=+—H = £B17
BABREEZBEALTRAA R REEE
E 2kt - ARG RESFF - AT E
RARBRBEZFSFRAERL (BHEHE
Gol]) E326FE 2 ERMAZER B
BIEETHRAHE LT AR ESETESRRS
iR EsF R ([ZE2ESPR]) ZSTHREARAR
BT s

o)}
=5

&= [EBUHBHMBTEWH ‘

ML ——
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS IN EERFETHAEREZRDE

€10z Hoday [enuuy  paywi] ABojouyda)-olg Ainesg (einieN | Q)

SHARES (Continued) = ()
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company RAABRG REERSG ZFE
Ordinary shares ZRER
% of the
issued share capital
Number of of the Company
Director Nature of interest ordinary shares EARRAFE
s RERE Eralie s BITRABE DL
Dr. TSAl Yen-Yu®” Interest of controlled companies 1,314,030,000 65.63%
I EIHELO g INSIE: £
Mr. LEE Ming-Ta® Interest of spouse 1,314,030,000 65.63%
FHHESLAD [iREr
Dr. SU Chien-Cheng® Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
gL HEE R
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu® Deemed interest 1,314,030,000 65.63%
ERarAE L HEE RS
Options R
% of the
Number of shares/ issued share capital
underlying shares held of the Company
Chief Executive Officer Nature of interest FTEEAR1D HARRAIE
BERMTE EEME Gl 2 4= BIIRABES
Ms. CHANG Karen Yi Fen Beneficial owner 38,039,918 1.90%

RS L

BEamlEAA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES (Continued)
Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:

m Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu directly owns 40% of Next Focus Holdings Limited, which, in turn,
indirectly owns 50% of Standard Cosmos Limited, Standard Cosmos Limited is
therefore a controlled corporation of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the
SFO. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company owned by Standard Cosmos
Limited are attributable to Dr TSAI Yen-Yu.

) Mr. LEE Ming-Ta is the spouse of Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu and accordingly, is deemed to be
interested in the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company attributable to Dr. TSAI Yen-
Yu pursuant to Section 316 of the SFO.

3) Each of Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu is taken to be interested in the
1,314,030,000 shares of the Company which are indirectly owned by Starsign
International Limited pursuant to Sections 317 and 318 of the SFO by virtue of Dr.
SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu being parties to a shareholders’ agreement
dated 15 October 2009 which imposes obligations or restrictions on the parties
thereto with respect to their use, retention or disposal of their interest in shares of
the Company.

Details of the interests of Directors and chief executive in the derivatives interests
in the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013 are disclosed in the Share
Options which are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the chief executive nor
their associates had any interests or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31 December 2013.

BEERFTETHAEEEZRGOE
= ()
REATRORAEBRO ZFA (&)

BEE

(1)  F I F 18 L & & % BNext Focus Holdings
Limited 0% &5 M@z 2 A AIMEHE A
Standard Cosmos Limited 50%4 % ° 1B #& &%
% N B & & 5 #3161% » Standard Cosmos
LimtedAMBEEEB LT 2 EFEE -
A Itk Standard Cosmos Limitedfff # & <
1,314,030,000% X 22 &) f& 7 7] 7 R &2 3 £ 18
S

Q ZFTHEAEAERIBIZER  RBREFE
MEAEEHIE3 605 - TREL WG IEREE
Fe RE MR 21,314,030,0000% & A & f% 7
AR -

(B) ERHEEIBLIEHFSEEIHAEC
¢+ﬂ+£EéJZk$%%ZJmE ﬁ
ZHBERESETOAHER  RESIHLERSH
HWEZAEAR Th@ﬁ*mmﬁEimﬂ
&kmﬁ 5 K H B 5 317 %3185
BEHNE T RERFEE TR A RStarsign
International Limitedf& % # & 221,314,030,000
RARBRD P HEEER ©

REZE —F+-_A=t—HIFE B
%&IxﬁﬁAE%%ﬁZK RIPTE T AR
HEBE[REE] —6FE  YHNGAH
SRR MIFE2S ©

B EMXETEEIN RZE—=F+=_A=+—

B SIEECAES  TETRABARFZH
BALTRAR B AL BEEE 2 AR
7~ HERODIESFTEB T AEDRIAR -

ETHEHHGFERE ‘a

.
=% —
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SHARE OPTIONS IR e

The Company AAT]

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 25 to the N2 AIRARAEET 8] 2 B E N 4R 6 M 15k i
consolidated financial statements. FF25 °

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options during N &RIREA R RIRRENF A2 EBIER
the year:

Outstanding
Lapsed/ at
Outstanding forfeited 31122013
at1.1.2013 during i
i Granted theyear  Cancelled —ZT—=%F
Date of Vesting Exercise Exercise —E—=%F during FA during +-HA
Option Type Grant Period period Pice —HA—H the year X8/ theyear =1—H
RIBERERI KA SEY 1T TR HAORE  FARE RY FREHE RATTRE
2011 option 4 April 2011 4 years 4 April 2012 to HKS1.90 4,564,788 - (1,201,260)  (3363,528) -
3 April 2021
“EFRkE —FT—F 0OF —F—F 190/ 7T
mAmA MAMBZE
B
mA=H
2013 Option (CEQ) 10 May 2013 4 years 10 May 2022 to HK$099 - 38039918 S - 38039918
9 May 2023
“T-FRkE —T-=F MOF —T_CF 099/87T
(BER#TE) IA+HE TR+HEE
—E-=F
AANE
2013 Option 19 April 2013 4 years 19 April 2022 to HK$0.99 - 35236972 11,712,290 - 23524682
(Other employees) 18 April 2023
“TCERRE —T=F OF —ToCF 0997 7T
(EftiEE) mA+NB mA+IRZE
S
MA+\H

Total et 4564788 73276890 (12913550) (3,363528) 61,564,600
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

2011 option

All remaining options granted on 4 April 2011 were cancelled or lapsed during
the year.

2013 Option
The 2013 options (“Options”) were granted in accordance with the
announcement of the Company dated 8 April 2013.

At the annual general meeting held on 10 May 2013, options to subscribe
38,039,918 ordinary shares of the Company were granted to Ms. CHANG Karen Yi
Fen, chief executive officer of the Company. The offer letters to other employees
relating to the Options were Issued on 19 April 2013.

The Options will vest over 4 years commencing from the date falling on the
publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the financial year
2014 (“First Year") at the rate of up to a maximum of 40% for the First Year and
up to a maximum of 20% for each of the following three years, subject to (i) the
achievement of the performance targets for each financial year as determined by
the Board at its sole discretion, and (i) the Option holder remaining as an Eligible
Person (as defined in the share option scheme of the Company) at the time of
each vesting of the Options.

All vested Options may be exercised by the Option holder prior to the expiry of
10 years from the date of grant of the Options and at the earlier of:

a) the 9-year anniversary of the date of grant of the Options; and
b)  the occurrence of a change in control of the Company.

In the case that a change in control occurs prior to the vesting of all the Options,
the Board shall have full discretions on the vesting and exercise of such unvested
Options.

Any failure to exercise any vested Option prior to the expiry of 10 years from
the date of grant of the Options shall be deemed to be a waiver of the right to
exercise such Options and such Options shall not be capable of being exercised

after expiry of the 10-year period.

B (@)

—E——FRRE
—E——FENANBEYY 2 BRSRIRER
A REESE SR o

—E-=FRRE
“E-ZFREE ([RRE]) TVRBAR A
HHA-Z—=FNANBZAEEE -

R-E—ZFRA+HBTZRRBFKS
F - ARBZEFRITERBE LT ERAR
8838,039 918 AR AL BR < RARKE - XA
AERZE—=FNATHAREMESFEL
BRI ZIRE R -

RAEEBEAKENE _FT-NFHRFE
(TF—F]) BREZWHREE HEFTFH
BRE  BELX/E —FRZE0%  BER
—FEBERZE%  BRBEZEBIERESRN
BREBR - (WAEBESENESEYRF
EE2ERBREZKRABE  Ri)BRESE
ABEDBEEBAL (EERARAZRRK
RERTEl) -

REEFAARN BRBRER L ABEF 45
A ARBEETIEER (ARFERE)
TEMBCREZRRE

a) WERERLBEHAEFZHE K

b)  ARBEGIEHIREE
WA R ERBA AR B 2 IEHIHRE

B EREEENA2RENBERETABRRER
R R NITE -

A RBAER B BRE S+ BAR E AT R T T
B2 EAIERBRBE - ARG R E
FAACHETERER - MABRRER L
TFEMREEREE T AT -

ETHEHHGFERE ‘a
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

The Company’s right to buy back the Options or the Option shares

Upon the occurrence of a change in control of the Company, the Company
may, in Its absolute discretion, purchase any unexercised Options or any Option
shares at such time held by the Option holder and the Option holder shall sell to
the Company such unexercised Options or Option Shares, at the following price:

- in the case of unexercised Options, the price offered by the offeror in the
general offer minus the subscription price of the Option; and

- In the case of Option shares, the price offered by the offeror in the general
offer.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Shares
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the listed shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2013.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, the following
shareholders other than the directors of the Company had notified the Company
of their relevant interests in the issued capital of the Company.

R )

2 08 ] 5 IR R R 52 IR RE AR 49 2 REF
EAARZHEEEZBERT - ARAATBY
B R E S mRRIERE ARG 2@
KT R ARAE S (A RASAE R - T SR ASAE 5
BAERTHIBEARATHE KT ER
AR S SR BRAE RS -

- RERARZRBRENS - 2ERERE
2 W B A SR 2 (B R R R R
B R

- FREBRERMNmE
BARHZER -

BEROIES 22 H

PHEHWEEZE K

B EXFTIRE 2 R 815N - MFEREME
B ARE - HERAR - HERMEQFK
R B LRI ESEIT I EM T BSR
NREFRTHEWBARR S AEMNEMEAER
2B HESFMES S -

BE - HEFFEEEL QT LKA
HE_ZT—=F+"_A=1+—HIFEARN " &K
RAREEFAMBRARYERBE - HExED
AR AUE] ETAAD ©

FERR

RZZE—=F+A=+—8  BARFIRE

ErLBEGRIIEBHTFECTERRER

MATR > UTRR (ARREZRIN) EHE
RARERARBCETRATEE A HE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

FERR (&)
RAEQATRORAERGZHA

RAREREEI0BITZEER

Name of substantial shareholder

TERRLE BB

Notes

FiRE

Nature of interest
e

Number of
ordinary shares
beneficially held
EnlEA
Rl

Percentage
of the Issued
share capital

of the Company
EARAT DT
BAESL

Efficient Market Investments Limited

Adventa Group Limited

Fortune Bright Group Limited

Starsign International Limited

Next Focus Holdings Limited

CA NB Limited

Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, LP.

Keywise Capital Management
(HK) Limited
SIBBIREER (F8) GARAF

Orchid Asia V, LP.

OAV Holdings LP.

Orchid Asia V GP, Limited

Orchid Asia V Group Management,
Limited

Beneficial owner

ESlEAA

Beneficial owner

BB A

Beneficial owner

EnEAA

Interest of controlled companies

RyEH A EER

Interest of controlled companies
RIEEIN B

Interest of controlled companies
gkl NSIL

Interest of controlled companies
gl NSIL: £

Beneficial owner
EnEAA
Beneficial owner
EnEGA

Interest of controlled companies
TSI A R

Interest of controlled companies
PR R

Interest of controlled companies
A R

838,530,000(L)

236,580,000(L)

236,580,000(L)

1,314,030,000(L)

1,314,030,000(L)

1,314,030,000(L)

1,314,030,000(L)

112,180,000(L)

142,750,650(L)

142,750,650(L)

142,750,650(L)

142,750,650(L)

41.88%

11.82%

11.82%

65.63%

65.63%

65.63%

65.63%

5.60%

7.13%

7.13%

7.13%

7.13%

ETHEHHGFERE ‘3

.
=% —
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

FERRE (&)
RAEQXTROREBRARGD 2R (8)
AATERMEEC.10BTT2EER (48)

Percentage
of the Issued
share capital

Number of
ordinary shares

beneficially held of the Company

Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Nature of interest EnlEs AR RIB BT

TERRESR LT fizr =g gl = BRAB DL

Orchid Asia V Group Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 142,750,650(L) 7.13%
S 2 FER

Areo Holdings Limited 4 Interest of controlled companies 144,075,000(L) 7.20%
TSI A AR

LI Gabriel 4 Interest of controlled companies 144,075,000(L) 7.20%
FHELE REGIR AR

LAM Lai Ming 4 Interest of controlled companies 144,075,000(L) 7.20%
HRRERR g il NI £

JP Morgan Chase & Co. 5 Beneficial owner & custodian 104,741,600(L)&(P) 5.23%

corporation/approved
lending agent

EnlEBARFEERR
RAIE IR

(L): Long position; (P): Lending pool

Notes:

Mm

Starsign International Limited is the sole shareholder of Standard Cosmos
Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Efficient Market Investments
Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited. As such,
the 1,311,690,000 shares of the Company collectively held by Efficient Market
Investments Limited, Adventa Group Limited and Fortune Bright Group Limited
and 2,340,000 shares of the Company held directly by Standard Cosmos Limited
(totalling 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company) are attributable to Standard
Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited.

Next Focus Holdings Limited directly owns 50% of Starsign International Limited.
As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company in which Starsign International
Limited is interested are attributable to Next Focus Holdings Limited.

Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P. is the sole shareholder of CA North Beach Limited, which,
in turn, is the sole shareholder of CA NB Limited. CA NB Limited directly owns 50%
of Starsign International Limited. As such, the 1,314,030,000 shares of the Company
in which Starsign International Limited is interested are attributable to CA NB
Limited, CA North Beach Limited and Carlyle Asia Partners Il L.P.

L) 4R - () - ATEE R Z B

W -

Starsign International Limited&Standard
Cosmos LimitedZ M — J%& B - ffiStandard
Cosmos Limited ZEfficient Market Investments
Limited ~ Adventa Group Limited &2Fortune
Bright Group LimitedZ M — &3 - At A
Efficient Market Investments Limited * Adventa
Group Limited &2Fortune Bright Group Limited
H£EFA 21,311,690,00008 48 2 7LD A K B
Standard Cosmos Limited B & 4A 2 2,340,000
R R RIIR (A 2£1,314,030,000% 281 7] %
1) AIEZ M Standard Cosmos Limited & Starsign
International Limited °

Next Focus Holdings Limited B % # A Starsign
International Limited 50%#&z + B » Starsign
International LimitedBE B %252 1,314,030,0004%
N2 AR5 AT B A Next Focus Holdings Limited ©

Carlyle Asia Partners Ill, L.P./CA North Beach
Limited 2 M —f%3R + MCA North Beach Limited
/3CA NB Limited Z M — X 3R ° CA NB Limited
H ¥ # B Starsign International Limited 5004
# A - Starsign International Limited A &
% ,21,314,030,00008 78 22 B J& £ 7] £5 FACA NB
Limited ~ CA North Beach Limited & Carlyle Asia
Partners Ill, L.P. ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company (Continued)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (Continued)

@

Areo Holdings Limited is the sole shareholder of Orchid Asia V Co-Investment,
Limited and Orchid Asia V Group Limited. Orchid Asia V Group Limited is the sole
shareholder of Orchid Asia V Group Management, Limited, which, in turn, is the sole
shareholder of Orchid Asia V GP, Limited, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of
OAV Holdings L.P, which, in turn, is the sole shareholder of Orchid Asia V, LP. Orchid
Asia V, LP. and Orchid Asia V Co-Investment, Limited directly held 142,750,650
(approximately 7.13%) and 1,324,350 (approximately 0.07%) of the shares of the
Company, respectively. Areo Holdings Limited is beneficially owned by Li Gabriel
and LAM Lai Ming. LAM Lai Ming is the spouse of LI Gabriel.

JP Morgan Chase & Co. beneficially owned 44,691,600 shares of the Company and
held 60,050,000 shares of the Company as custodian corporation/approved lending
agent.

Save as the interests disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of

any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the

Company as at 31 December 2013.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Group had the following significant transactions with connected persons:

0]

On 29 October 2010, (a) the renewed Taipei Tenancy Agreement was
entered into between Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Company Limited
BAZEEMBHE K B BR QA (formerly Natural Beauty Cosmetics
Company Limited B A b i & % 15 B BR 2 7)) (‘NB Taiwan’), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as tenant and Dr. TSAI
as landlord for a period of two years from 1 November 2010 to 31 October
2012, with monthly rental of TWD2,250,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$596,026. The agreement was renewed for a period of two years from
1 November 2012 to 31 October 2014 with the same monthly rental),
and (b) the Pa-Der Tenancy Agreement was entered into between NB
Taiwan as tenant and Dr. SU Chien-Cheng as landlord for a period of two
years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2012 with a monthly rental of
TWD75,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$19,868). The agreement was
renewed for a period of two years from 1 January 2013 to 31 December
2014 with the same monthly rental.

FERR (&)
RADATRORAAERGZTAE ()

AATEREEIBTZEER (8)

(4) Areo Holdings Limited&Orchid Asia V Co-
Investment, Limited & Orchid Asia V Group
LimitedZ M — A% 2 ° Orchid Asia V Group
Limited&Orchid Asia V Group Management,
Limited,Z M — A% 3 + MOrchid Asia V Group
Management, Limited/&Orchid Asia V GP,
LimitedZ Mt — A& 38 ifOrchid Asia V GP,
Limited Z0AV Holdings L.P.Z Mf — X 3+ i
OAV Holdings LP.&Orchid Asia V, LP.ZME—
A& ° Orchid Asia V, LP.&Orchid Asia V Co-
Investment, Limited% Bl B % 5 5 142,750,650
A& (497.13%) K.1,324,3500% (#90.07%) AN T
%1% o Areo Holdings Limited B2 ELE 2 MR
REHE - MBRAZEE ZES -

(5)  JP Morgan Chase & Co. & 2514 44,691,6000%
ARRRD - WAREAR,/ RAEHNE
H193%7560,050,0000 A A &)L -

frEXEBE RN R_T—=F+_-A=
T—B  ARARLEEMNENARFSETR
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HEXZREEREASH ZES
REE L EREATRIT T HIEARS
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2iE+T (fEA%T) BrTaltHERS -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’

INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

(i) (Continued)
Details of the renewed tenancy agreements were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 October 2012. Unless
otherwise stated, for illustration purpose, the exchange rate used in this
announcement is HK$1.00 to TWD3.7750.

(i)  On 14 December 2011, the Consultancy Service Agreement with CA NB
Limited was renewed for a period of three years from 1 January 2012 to 31
December 2014 for a fee of HK$368,000 per calendar month. Details of the
Consultancy Service Agreement were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 14 December 2011.

The above transactions are regarded as continuing connected transactions of
the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the
transactions are disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors confirmed that the transactions have
been entered into by the Group in the ordinary course of its business, on terms
no less favourable than terms available from independent third parties and in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such transactions that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company

as a whole.
Save as disclosed above:

(i) no contracts of significance subsisted to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year; and

(i) there were no transactions which need to be disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is adopted by the
board of directors (the “Board”) on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors and chief executives of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board,
as authorised by shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited, on behalf of Standard Cosmos Limited,
made a mandatory unconditional cash offer (“Offer”) to acquire all the issued
shares in the share capital of the Company (other than those already owned
by Standard Cosmos Limited and parties acting in concert with it), the details
of which are set out the Company's announcement dated 23 November 2009
and the composite document in relation to the Offer jointly issued by the
Company and the offeror, namely Standard Cosmos Limited on 23 November
2009 (“Composite Document”). Upon closing of the Offer, 462,774,932 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 23.11% of the total issued share
capital of the Company, are held by the public. Prior to the Offer, the percentage
of the shares of the Company held by the public was 23.00%. Accordingly, the
Company has insufficient public float and does not meet the requirement under
Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

B & BRER
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LTS BIBRIELESR  BRESSELR
E o URRRAERFBEFAES LRE -

RARCEHEN—ERRETE - NEBEEN
LEREE - LT 2 BER R A UBHRE
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Cosmos Limitedt2 Hi 54 il 1 M (G 38 & UK g 2
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171 (Standard Cosmos Limited K H —2k
TBATEHEB ZRHERIN - BEFIBHRN
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A R A A B EYEE 75 (BlStandard Cosmos
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PUBLIC FLOAT (Continued)

Pursuant to the Composite Document, to the extent that there is insufficient
public float for the Company as a result of the Offer and Standard Cosmos
Limited is unable to or does not exercise any right it may have under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands to compulsorily acquire those shares of
the Company not acquired by Standard Cosmos Limited pursuant to the Offer,
the directors of Standard Cosmos Limited and the new directors who were
appointed to the Company on 24 November 2009 will jointly and severally
undertake to the Exchange to take appropriate steps to ensure that sufficient
public float exists in the shares of the Company.

On 22 May 2013, one of the key institutional shareholders reduced its
shareholding in the Company to less than 10%, and that institutional shareholder
was no longer regarded as a substantial shareholder of the Company and all of

its shareholding in the Company was counted as part of the public float.

The public float of the Company was restored and stood at 34.37% since 22 May
2013 and up to the date of this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu which
being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

TSAIl Yen-Yu
Chairperson
Hong Kong

26 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEEHRES

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
NATURAL BEAUTY BIO-TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Natural Beauty Bio-
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 171, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB HRES

Auditor’s Responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

AeBEakEtEERGER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(E-T =+ _A=1T—HLHFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
{hEss TFET FAT
Revenue WA 5 439,421 483,438
Cost of sales FHERA (106,321) (103,592)
Gross profit EF 333,100 379,846
Other income Haplhzs 7 19,930 20,641
Distribution and selling expenses DiENIHEE B (175,605) (189,581)
Administrative expenses THRAX

— (Expense) reversal of share based payment — BB () B (1,040) 28,031

— Other administrative expenses HAbITBF S (90,101) (73,083)
Other expenses HibFsz (3,232) (10,603)
Profit before tax MRAR BT A 83,052 155,251
Income tax expense FriSHifsZ 8 (24,593) (36,143)
Profit for the year RNEFE A 9 58,459 119,108
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hith2mE (k) Wz :
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: TERENIBEEEREK

ZIER

Remeasurement of defined benefit pension plan ERERARINEFT &

ZEHEE 23 (3,384) -
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to e EF D ERERER

profit or loss: ZIE g :

Exchange differences arising on translation BEEFCEREE 9,774 9,094
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE 2R ERE 64,849 128,202
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: AT A LA AREE G

(B8) :
Owners of the Company RABEEA 58,269 119,268
Non-controlling interests IR 190 (160)
58,459 119,108
Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to: LA T A B2 EUWE
(M%) 5
Owners of the Company KRABEB A 64,662 128,357
Non-controlling interests FEFER AR 187 (155)
64,849 128,202
Earnings per share BraF 12
Basic and diluted BEAR RS HK2.9 cents HK6.0 cents

ETHEHHGFERE ‘d

.
=% —

MLt



€10z Woday fenuuy  paywir] ABojouyda)-oig Aineag [eineN |

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR R ]R3k

At 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=H=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Fax FExT FAT
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment properties PE=R/ES 14 5,963 5,962
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 15 257,218 272,762
Prepaid lease payments BRI ER 16 9,453 9,465
Goodwill S 17 28,375 27,643
Deposit paid for acquisition of land use right Hﬂlﬁﬁihﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁi 12,692 12,303
Deferred tax assets IRERIEEE 26 974 684
314,675 328,819
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 47,047 67,427
Trade and other receivables B 5N EMmEWIRR 19 112,624 55,071
Prepaid lease payments BRI ER 16 312 302
Bank balances and cash wITEFRIES 20 507,409 432,441
667,392 555,241
Current liabilities wREAE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNIRR 21 154,510 115,327
Deferred income REW 22 7,779 5927
Taxation payable FERHIE 18,544 4,704
180,833 125,958
Net current assets REBEERE 486,559 429,283
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 801,234 758,102
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Retirement benefit obligations RINENAE 23 12,976 10,106
788,258 747,996
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital [iE&N 24 200,210 200,210
Reserves &G 588,048 547,973
Equity attributable to owners of RAREE AELER
the Company 788,258 748,183
Non-controlling interests RS - (187)
Total equity AR 788,258 747,996
The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 171 were approved and ~F75BEEZF171ANGA P BEHRER T —IT
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2014 and are signed ~ F = A=+ /NHEEES AT FETIE - I
on its behalf by: RATREESE

Dr. SU Chien-cheng Mr. Patrick Thomas SIEWERT

FEHEL HAEREE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF



Consoljdated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEmE R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(E-T =+ _A=1T—HLHFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARMEAEE
Share Non-
Share  Capital Share  Statutory Translation option  Retained controlling
capital  surplus  premium reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
ke BRBH  ROBE iERE EXRE JRERG REEH a FeRER st
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKY'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tér TEr TEr TEn TR TEx TEn  TEn  TER  TEn
At1 January 2012 RZE-—%-A-H 200210 42554 41016 157,169 119923 30,154 196,978 788,004 181 788,185
Other comprehensive income FEEENZE
forthe year Iz - - - - 9,089 - 9,089 5 9,004
Profitfor the year TEFAT - - - - = - 1928 119268 (160 119108
Total comprehensive incorne REERENS (i)
(expense) for the year a5 - - - - 9089 - 11968 128357 (155 128202
Reversalof equity-ettled share }%@Hﬂ?&?ﬁ gty
based payment BES - - - - - (28031) - (28031) - (28031)
Acquistion of additionalnterest ~ UREEHTB AT
in a subsiciary Ea - - - - - - - = (o) (on3)
Transfers &5 - - - 6321 - - (6321) - - -
Dividends recognised as REDKLIRE
distibution (note 13) (Ktt13) - - - - - - (MM (40047 - (o)
At31 December 2012 R-E-—F+-B=t-H 200210 42554 41,016 163490 129012 213 169,778 748,183 (187) 7479%
Other comprehensive income REEEMZENS
(expense) for the year (stth) = = = = 9777 = (3384 6393 B) 63%
Profit or the year TEEAT - - - - = - B 58269 90 58499
Total comprehensive income REEREYE
forthe year &% = - - - 9777 - 54885 64,662 187 64849
Recognition of equity-settled EARMEREERD
shae based payment e - - - - - 121 - 121 e 121
Cancellation of unvested share options #HSHR{THEDIRIE = = = = = 919 = 919 = 919
Transfer upon cancellation of RARETER
share options it = = = = = (2489) 2483 = = =
Dividends recognised as BARDRLRE
disrbuton (note 13) (Hist3) = i - - - - e e - B
At 31 December 2013 “E3-=F{-A=1-H 200210 4255 41016 163490 138789 680 21519 788,258 - 788258
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

Capital surplus

The capital surplus represents the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share of the carrying value of the subsidiaries’ net assets
acquired upon the Group Reorganisation in year 2002.

These above-mentioned reserves and funds cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which they were created and are not distributable as cash
dividends.

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the owners of the Company immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC"), the PRC companies with foreign investment are required to transfer a
certain percentage of its profit after tax, as determined under PRC accounting
regulations (the net profit under PRC generally accepted accounting principles
("PRC GAAP"), to the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund.
Distribution of these reserves shall be made in accordance with the Article
of Association and approved by the board of directors each year. Other PRC
companies are required to transfer a certain percentage of their net profit under
PRC GAAP to the statutory surplus reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their paid-in capital.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, Taiwan companies shall set
aside 10% of their statutory net income each year for the legal reserve, until the
reserve balance has reached the paid-in share capital amount.

xR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nv-_r\/\IEr M7 /)II_, i'%

For the year ended 31 December 2013
(E-T =+ _A=1T—HLHFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES rEEY
Profit before tax FRFH AR ) 83,052 155,251
Adjustments for: RN &IE
Interest income PSR (9,337) (7,048)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEREBITE 39,226 33,215
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - HEME&E 2 EE 1,710 4,039
Release of prepaid lease payments Bo B A LtHEER 312 302
Increase in fair value of investment properties FEWHERNFEIZ N (196) (653)
Allowance for obsolete inventories PRETFERG 6,495 8,688
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables BEE 5 KRR EEE - (426)
Expense (reversal) of share based payment expense (@) TR RFEX 1,040 (28,031)
Allowance on trade receivables H 5 RWR B 446 =
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 48 & & Z A2 KLEERE 122,748 165,337
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA () 13,885 (35,855)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables B 5 REMERBRFKE M CRld) 39,183 (20,492)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWERTR (350) (57,999) 1,246
Increase (decrease) in deferred income EAEIZSIE N Cmd) 1,852 (549)
(Decrease) increase in retirement benefit obligations IRREN B EE I CRid) (79) 97
Cash generated from operations REXEEEIRE 119,590 109,784
Income taxes paid BRATSHIA (11,301) (50,247)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHISREFHR 108,289 59,537
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E—-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETESH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BERXE (22,570) (48913)
Interest received 2 UF B 9,337 7,048
Deposit paid for land use right AT RRES - (12,303)
Decrease in pledged bank deposit EEMRITEFOR S = 443
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y « BB M RGBS A 100 3,084
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETHMAESTFHE (13,133) (50,641)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Dividends paid IR S (25,627) (140,147)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary IR E A RIARE = (789)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETBHTARESFEH (25,627) (140,936)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERBLEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS i () 69,529 (132,040)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY R—B—BzEERESEEY 432,441 558,292
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES EREE s E 5,439 6,189
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RTZA=+—H=ZzEEK

31 DECEMBER HEeEEY

(represented by bank balances and cash) (BERITETFENRESD) 507,409 432,441
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General

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 29 June 2001 as an exempted company with limited liability. Its
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 28 March 2002. Its parent and ultimate parent are
Standard Cosmos Limited and Starsign International Limited, respectively,
and both were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the introduction to this annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin care, beauty
and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin treatments,
beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty training.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is also the functional currency of the Company.

—REHR

KRB —RARBREERF K=
TE-FRNA-TNAREREHEST
MR RERRERAR - HRkHAE
—EE_F=ZRA_+T/\BREETEH
ERXRGHMBERLR ([BRXA]) £ e
KRB ZERABRFREERRARD
Al AStandard Cosmos Limited K Starsign
International Limited * FIZR 2 R H 5B
HERRBEESEMKYL - ARF M
ERENBBIBEEME 2R
RARER 2 REVEREMD ©

ARRA—RREERAT - AEBEE
EEBRQUERHEERE XAKE
EEMEOIIRENEERE  ERRK
BEARG AR EEEBEERE R ERS
e RRBIETHBARZ EZEKSH
ARG B T R M 533 o
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) for the
first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 —
1 cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets

and financial liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 joint arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in associates and

joint ventures
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of

other comprehensive income
HK(FRIC) — INT 20 Stripping costs in the production phase

of a surface mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for, and disclosures
about, fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment’,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases’, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value (e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure

requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012 comparative period
(please see note 14 for the 2013 disclosures). Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income” Upon the adoption of the amendments
to HKAS 1, the Group's 'statement of comprehensive income’is renamed
as the ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to
be made in the other comprehensive income section such that items of
other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions
are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income either before
tax or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively,
and hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has
been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments to HKAS 1 does
not result in any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income

and total comprehensive income.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKAS 19 Employee benefits (as revised in 2011)

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
(as revised in 2011) and the related consequential amendments for the
first time. HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) changes the accounting for defined
benefit plans and termination benefits.

The most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in
defined benefit obligations and plan assets. The amendments require
the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations and in the fair
value of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor
approach’ permitted under the previous version of HKAS 19 and accelerate
the recognition of past service costs. All actuarial gains and losses are
recognised immediately through other comprehensive income in order
for the net pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position to reflect the full value of the plan deficit
or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on plan
assets used in the previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a net
interest” amount under HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011), which is calculated
by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
These changes had no material impact on the amounts recognised in
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in prior years. Accordingly,
the Group has not restated the comparative amounts on retrospective basis.
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2. Application of New And Revised Hong Kong 2.
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 cycle?

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date of
and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and transition disclosures®

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment entities'
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans:
Employee contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation of
hedge accounting’

HK(FRIC) - INT 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

S Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined
when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with limited
exceptions.

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

The annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle include a number
of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of 'vesting
condition” and ‘market condition’; and (i) add definitions for ‘performance
condition” and ‘service condition” which were previously included within
the definition of 'vesting condition. The amendments to HKFRS 2 are
effective for share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is

on or after 1 July 2014

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured at fair value at
each reporting date, irrespective of whether the contingent consideration
is a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39
or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value (other than
measurement period adjustments) should be recognised in profit and
loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are effective for business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgments made by management in applying the aggregation criteria to
operating segments, including a description of the operating segments
aggregated and the economic indicators assessed in determining

whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic characteristics’;

and (i) clarify that a reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’

assets to the entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets
are regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle (Continued)

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify that
the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-term receivables and
payables with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or an
intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset and that accumulated depreciation/
amortisation is the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity providing
key management personnel services to a reporting entity is a related party
of the reporting entity. Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose
as related party transactions the amounts incurred for the service paid or
payable to the management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of such

compensation is not required.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
included in the annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle will have
a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

The annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle include a number
of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not apply to
the accounting for the formation of all types of joint arrangement in the
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are within the
scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS 9,
even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial assets or
financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3 are not
mutually exclusive and application of both standards may be required.
Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property must determine

whether:

(@)  the property meets the definition of investment property in terms
of HKAS 40; and

(b)  the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the amendments
included in the annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle will have
a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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2. Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently

amended in 2010 to include the requirements for the classification and

measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further

amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS
39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and measurement” are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.

Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes
in the financial liabilities' credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change
in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of
hedge accounting. However, greater flexibility has been introduced to the
types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening
the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and
replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have
also been introduced.

Based on the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2013, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have a significant impact on the
amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities, however it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
that effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off’and ‘simultaneous realisation and settlement’

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have any
financial assets and financial liabilities that qualify for offset.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclose
the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) to which
goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives had
been allocated when there has been no impairment or reversal of
impairment of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the fair value hierarchy,
key assumptions and valuation techniques used when the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU was determined based on its fair value less
costs of disposal.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a significant impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Application of New And Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the requirement to
discontinue hedge accounting when a derivative hedging instrument
is novated under certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify
that any change to the fair value of the derivative hedging instrument
arising from the novation should be included in the assessment of hedge
effectiveness.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 39 will have any effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have any
derivatives that are subject to novation.

HK (IFRIC) = INT 21 Levies

HK (IFRIC) — INT 21 “Levies” addresses the issue of when to recognise
a liability to pay a levy. The Interpretation defines a levy, and specifies
that the obligating event that gives rise to the liability is the activity
that triggers the payment of the levy, as identified by legislation. The
Interpretation provides guidance on how different levy arrangements
should be accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial statements
preparation implies that an entity has a present obligation to pay a levy
that will be triggered by operating in a future period.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HK
(IFRIC) = INT 21 will have no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as the Group does not have any levy arrangements.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;
Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company:

has power over the investee;

is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and

circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

3.

FESHBE @)

BEEE ()

HA—EWEA TR AEEESZHE
AT IR RIS - BN AEE LS

LB AR 2 mEER R BB
T ERFRIES T E Y B AT

AR - mAEEREZHE AT
RHIE Y BT A E B LAY B
IEEFABRA B R E 2 E KR o

BERdEEEMEm SRR BN
NEVRA AN ED - B ARZ
PHKRREBREBNAR 7%7%}\&#

Rt BIME BN S EBIRERE
J/:I_I\Li %i%mﬂjmﬂﬁ% °
WERE  BenMERRMERKE

HAE  NEESFBREANEEES
BRERM— -

PPESREREERAE - #xm - A
MXEREREAFAHEXZHEBRESR
BREERER2HEEH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MR

iy =

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE

—E-=EtA=t-ALFE

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted
for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised

for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebate and
other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions
are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided. Payments
that are related to services not yet rendered are deferred and shown as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating

leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than freehold land and properties under construction as described
below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than freehold land and properties under
construction) less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties include land held for undetermined
future use, which is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets (Continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in

profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
the translation reserve.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising
on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and retranslated
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Funds as required under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the
Labour Standards Law (as amendment) in Taiwan and the PRC municipal
government retirement scheme, are recognised as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits
is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of
the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognised
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or
loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well
as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);
net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

The Group presents the first two components of defined benefit costs
in profit or loss. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past
service Costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this
calculation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits
available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the
Group entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when it recognises any related restructuring costs.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon satisfying specified
vesting conditions, the fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option

reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value

of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share option reserve

will be transferred to retained profits.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the ‘profit before tax as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles set out in
HKAS 12

be recovered).

(i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the properties will

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets
The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial

assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest and

principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience
of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the respective credit period, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
assets and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another equity to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors have made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$28,375,000 (2012: HK$27,643,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in note 17.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables is approximately
HK$83,680,000 (2012: HK$23,323,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts
of approximately HK$ 1,536,000 (2012: HK$1,338,000).

Estimated impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews inventories on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use in production and trading. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices,
sales after year end and current market conditions. As at 31 December
2013, net of allowance for inventory of HK$6,495,000 (2012: HK$8,688,000)
was recognised.
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5. Revenue 5. WA
Revenue represents the net amount received and receivables for (i) goods WAAREEBBATIEE ZE W EE
sold by the Group to outside customers which is stated net of sales returns YOFHE : ((AKEETINIEPZE®
and allowances and (ii) service income from provision of skin treatments, (T3 30Bx ﬁﬁﬁi_ s RITNETY)) - K
beauty and SPA services for the year, and is analysed as follows: HUSER - EBRKERS 2 RBE K
AT -
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Sales of goods EmiEE 434,220 479,592
Service income ARAGUA 5,201 3,846
439,421 483,438
6. Segment Information 6. DIEHR

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, in order to allocate resources to the segment and
to assess its performance. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company
reviews internal reports which focus on geographical segments by
location of customers for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance. This is the basis upon which the
Group is organised.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

1. The PRC
2. Taiwan
3. Others (Hong Kong, Malaysia and Macau)

BAMBMELRESHRTE - 290
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Segment Information (Continued) 6.
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by
reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2013

DEEE (&)
U R 4
TXAAEEY WA RLERTRER

& BEIE

ZAHT o

BE-_Z—=f+-A=+—HLEE

PRC Taiwan Others Total
FR B K B =) ] Hith #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
Revenue from external customers REIINBEFE Z WA 359,473 74,654 5,294 439,421
Segment profit (loss) HELRET (EE) 80,666 22,774 (7,454) 95,986
Expense of share based payment BEAD T ER ST (1,040)
Unallocated corporate expenses AOB AR H (21,231)
Unallocated income Rofede= 9,337
Profit before tax B R T 83,052
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z——F+-_A=+—HILHFE
PRC Taiwan Others Total
B K RE = Efib @5t
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FA&T FHET
Revenue from external customers REINEEE Z WA 379,582 97,516 6,340 483,438
Segment profit (loss) HEEA (E58) 114,099 31,487 4173) 141,413
Reversal of share based payment eIl SKDEN 28,031
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBE ARSI H (21,241)
Unallocated income Fomedss 7,048
Profit before tax AR T 155,251



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Segment revenues and results (Continued) DEBUBAREE (&)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the KEDER 2 SRR RT3 AR
Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment profit (loss) EIBEAER - 23EF (B1E) A%
represents the profit earned (loss incurred) by each segment without DEBREETS 2 m A (FTEL ZEE) -
allocation of equity-settled share based payments, central administration ERWRDERAREREZRG
costs, directors’ salaries and interest income. This is the measure reported FRITHER - EFFHMRFAEWA -
to the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource TR T EL B RS B R R IR AT M m)
allocation and performance assessment. FEEEARAERRE 2 BLE o
Other segment information Hittn BER
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
FRE R pE =) Hit oy b
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FExT FHET FET
2013 —E—=f
Amounts included in the measure of 9 2[5z sk BB A
segment profit (10ss): TFIRREE
Depreciation of property, plantand 4% - E K& &4E
equipment e 31,685 7,466 75 39,226
Release of prepaid lease payments Bo g ALt ER 312 - - 312
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE  BE K&K
plant and equipment 2 B8 (F)8) 1,736 (26) = 1,710
PREFERE
Allowance for obsolete inventories (BstE#sm) 6,272 67 156 6,495
Allowance (reversal of allowance) B SRR
on trade receivables B0l 644 - - 644

(8.7 0 5 3 T 3634 B ‘3
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6. Segment Information (Continued) 6. TEBEFR &)
Other segment information (Continued) Hitn BER (8)
Segment and
consolidated
PRC Taiwan Others total
DER
B R RE = EHh R
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
2012 —E——F
Amounts included in the measure of 5 & FIskESIBET A
segment profit (10ss): TFIRREE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WENERE
equipment e 26,877 6,293 45 33,215
Release of prepaid lease payments BoeBALtihHAER 302 = = 302
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HERE
plant and equipment 2 E1E (FR) 2,468 1,571 - 4,039
Allowance (reversal of allowance) [REFERE
for obsolete inventories (BstE#Em) 8,440 363 (115) 8,688
Reversal of allowance on trade B 5 EBR R
receivables ol - (228) - (228)
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Segment Information (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group is principally engaged in (a) manufacturing and selling of skin
care, beauty and aromatherapeutic products and (b) provision of skin
treatments, beauty and spa services and skin care consulting and beauty
training. The analysis of the Group's revenue by type of business for the
year are set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's non-current assets presented based on the geographical
location of the assets as detailed below:

DEE R (#)

o343 )
AEEIBRBQRBEREEEE - £
ARBERERROEHNEES - £5
RoK B RS A R W R R R RS R
AT o 7N o W4 O U R A K Rl Ve
7 DT TS

AEBZFRBDEEREEMEHRZ
(JEUNE

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHExT T4t

The PRC A K B 256,568 268,146
Taiwan =y 57,344 59,752
Others Hib 763 921
314,675 328,819

The Group has a very wide customer base, no single customer contributed
more than 10% of the Group's revenue for each of the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013.
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7. Other Income 7. Hitlz=

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Interest on bank deposits RITIF RS 9,337 7,048
Rental income from investment properties KEYE e 150 150

Rental income from other properties by E YN

and equipment W 3,282 2,946
Financial refunds (Note) BT R R (BIsE) 6,965 6,892
Increase in fair value of investment properties 2 E¥E R 196 653
Others Hih - 2,952

19,930 20,641
Note: Pursuant to the local practice of the finance bureau of the provinces in Mzt BB E THEREMBARKERTSE

which certain of the PRC subsidiaries operate, the PRC subsidiaries will
receive financial refunds from other taxes paid in the form of government
grants by way of negotiation with the relevant finance bureau. However,
the refunds are subject to review annually. It is therefore uncertain if these
subsidiaries will continue to be eligible for such financial refunds in the
future.

12%&%%%%%2“%&% Yoy
R B K RENT B A B) 5 7] 8 3B B 5 R B IR
BT - {MBBRTEEE
RNEERG R - BRRATINEA
B RR S o A - ARBRERR
MtiLﬁﬁﬁ W%* EHETE A BT
BRARRBRETEBELATERER L
MBS TS IRER -
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Income Tax Expense 8. FBHMAX
2013 2012
—E—=4F —ZT——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
The charge comprises: S HEE
Taxation in PRC AR B K BERR IR
Current year KEE 17,091 18,209
(Over) underprovision in prior years BEFE (BEEE) BETR (5,447) 3,179
Withholding tax on dividends IR B FEHH 7,303 12918
18,947 34,306
Taxation in Taiwan SEFIE
Current year KEEZ 2,216 6,132
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFE (BFEEE) BETR 172 (1,578)
2,388 4,554
Taxation in Hong Kong and other jurisdiction — &78 & Efth B/ AR B 1A
Current year KEEZ 3,786 3,586
Under (over) provision in prior years BRAFE (BEREE) BETR 20 @571)
3,806 3,135
Deferred taxation (note 26) IEERIE (FiEE26)
Current year KEE (548) (5852)
24,593 36,143

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, dividend
withholding tax is imposed at a rate of 10% on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries that are received by
non-PRC resident entities from 1 January 2008 onwards. Withholding tax
on dividends of approximately HK$7,303,000 (2012: HK$17,703,000) was
recognised.

BEFECEMSHE ((REREH
%) REEEMSBEAEREN  8=2F
TENF—A—HE  ABEKREMBAF
2R E25% ©

BB HEREONRRG BTN
F—A—B& BHREXEHBERTR
WA afmERTAIFEFREREE
W ER 2 BB, ZB3R10%80 R B < Ig B T8
- BRI ETEINF47,303,0008
7T (ZZF— 4 :17,703,000/87C) °
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Income Tax Expense (Continued)

8.

Corporate Income Tax in Taiwan is charged at 17% in both years.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for both years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income as follows:

BB (@)

REMMBEFEE  6ECEMBHRIE
17%ETUR °
ERNEHE MR EEE 2 (A5t ER

BoRH 2z 165%:18

AEEHRETHEGABEZAEME2E
WS RAT AR A ML BRI T -

2013 2012
—E—=F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Profit before tax BT AR A 83,052 155,251
Tax at domestic rates applicable to JERMERNEBBR 2= F
profits of taxable entities in the e E AR R E I8
countries concerned (Note) (BsE) 16,421 32,857
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR ST 2 B A s 2
for tax purpose 24,398 8,684
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BB 2T 2R 7 Tl TS o 22 (5,981) (9,190)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIBEE RGBT E 1,201 4227
Utilisation of tax losses previously BT RER 2 BiT%
not recognised E518 (9,898) (12,515)
(Over) underprovision in respect of prior years @ FE (HBEEREE) BETZ (5,255) (839)
Tax effect of withholding tax on BERER 2R BIEN 2 B
dividends previously not recognised e 442 7,239
Deferred tax liabilities on undistributed BERBERERB AT 2R KEF
profits of PRC subsidiaries ZIELERIBEE 3,265 5680
Tax charge for the year REERBIZ N 24,593 36,143
Note: As the Group operates in several different tax jurisdictions, separate Mt - AR AREER Z ETRB B R AR R

reconciliations using the domestic tax rate in each individual tax jurisdiction

have been aggregated and presented.

BER - B AR @ @RS B EE R
EWREEHZBIHREAHLE
5l) o
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9. Profit for the Year 9. KEEGF
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Profit for the year has been arrived at RERHEN DR GTA) T3
after charging (crediting): FIE
Staff costs: BTHA :
Directors'emoluments (note 10) EFEME (FizE10) 5,578 5,589
Other staff salaries and allowances Hh B THrBM KRB 100,618 98,588
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, RIKEMEEIEE . T
excluding directors: BE
— defined contribution plans (note 23 (b)) — EREHFETE (H3E230)) 17,322 18,092
- defined benefit plan (note 23 (a)) — EREEAIETE (FFE230) 497 506
Expense (reversal) of share based payment S () B 1,040 (28,031)
Total staff costs BT KA4R%E 125,055 94,744
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #12 ~ BRE R 3R 1 & 39,226 33215
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 2R AR 2 SR 99,900 94,904
Release of prepaid lease payments o eA LA ER 312 302
Auditor’s remuneration = RN & 3,668 3,365
Loss on disposal of property, LEME - WE KR
plant and equipment ol it 1,710 4,039
Research and development costs eI 3,294 3,469
Allowance for obsolete inventories, PRETFERE GtABE
included in cost of sales ) 6,495 8,688
Bad debts recovered B 5 YR D (446) (198)
Advertising and promotion expenses BEEMHEERS 32,066 48,069
Net exchange (gain) loss [E 5 B8 558 (2,395) 3,074
Allowance (reversal of allowance) on B 5 IEWBR TR
trade receivables (o] 644 (228)
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124 10. Directors’and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 10. EERFETHAEME
P . —
= The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2012: thirteen) ENSENT=ZE (ZE—ZF: +=
= directors and the chief executive were as follows: B)EERFETBRABZMEWT :
g
9 For the year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_F-=F+t-A=+t—-HLFE
[
é Dir;c;rs
%
g M. Ms.NG Ms. Mr, Mr, Chief

Dr.SU Dr.  Patick  Shiew  FENG ~ POON Frandis Ms. Total  Executive
5 DTSAl  MrLEE  Chien-  SUSh-  Thomas  Yeing  Janine YeeMan GOUTEN-  Su-Mei MrCHEN MrYANG  directors  Ms.Chang Total
5 Yenfu  MingTa  Cheng Hsyu ~ SIEWERT ~Christina Junguan ~ Awin ~ MACHER THOMPSON Rueylong Tze-Kaing emoluments KarenYiFen 013
é“ Frandis
g GOUTEN-
S BRT ZME HBY HRR  REE  RFE BEn BAX MAGHR  BEE  REE BRI EEME ERUGE 4%
w

Bt & Bt Bt % &t &t RE R &f R #% &t FERLE =
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0  HKSO00 HKSO00  HKSO00 HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0O
Tér TEL TER TR TR TEn fRx TR TER TR TER TEn AR TER TR

Fees ik 1,000 - 150 1250 - - - - U0 U0 U U 4460 - 4460
Otheremoluments Efifie
Salaies and other benefs £ RAE - 4 36 36 - - - - - - - - 976 458 555
Contrbutions to retrement beneftsscheme — RERERIA 81130 - 50 4 4% - - - - - - - - 142 3 17
Fquity-settled share based payments RABREERGAR - - - - - - - - - - - - - 468 468

Total emoluments Hess 1,000 41612 1612 - - - - 240 140 240 1) 5578 5048 10626
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10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012

10. EERFETHAEME @)

BE-T —_F+-A=1TBLFE

Directors
g%
M MsNG Ms. M, Mr Mr. Chef
DS Dr Patick  Shieu NG~ POON  Gregory  Francis Ms. Todl  Erecutie
DTS MelEE Chien- SUSh- Thomas Yeing  Janine  YeeMan  Michsel GOUTEN-  SuMei  McCHEN — MiYANG diectors METSENG Toral
YenYu  MingTa  Cheng Hyu ~ SEWERT  Chising  Junguan A ZELUCK  MACHER THOMPSON Rueylong  Treaing emoluments  Hsin-Sheng 0
Gregory  Francis
Michael ~ GOUTEN-
BRT OTHE BBY P MBE SR BET O EBR Ik wom BRE WRE BRI ESME ERNAE &%
Bt o Bt Bt b A It *E i R It kE 3 & OFEALt -IF
HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS000 HKS 000 HRS000  HKS000
Thn TE TEr TAr TEr TEr TEn TEn T TEn TR TR TEn TR AL TER
(Note')
2
fees #e 100 S I - W 2] u 2] 4460 - 4
Other emoluments Efle
Salries and other benefs FERAMEN - ¥ ] SR 68
Contributons to retement RIMEE
benefis scheme 3 - 51 Ly 4 - - - - 1% - 1%
Total emoluments [t 1000 397 1616 1616 = 20 2140 20 140 5589 5378 10%7
Notes: oEE:
(i) Mr. Gregory Michael ZELUCK resigned as director of the Company on 17 (i) Gregory Michael ZELUCKE AR ZT —
May 2012. “HERATERBERRRES -
(i) Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors are entitled to a (i) RITEBINERTEEAZEHFIE

management bonus aggregately not exceeding 15% of the audited
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company in respect of
that financial year of the Group, as recommended by the Remuneration
Committee.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013.

BeRmc BHEETA AR
NMBBAEENEEVBEFEEZ AR
A ANBIEREREREHEN15% °

REEZE-_ZT——_Rk=FT—=%+=-H
=t+—RHIEREFE  FAEEHBERE
EYNEMME - (EARSIEFMAR
SRS EMAREER Sk iEARE
BE -

EEMH&H%$%%EE

.
= —
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

11. Employees’ Emoluments

11

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three

(2012: three) of them are directors and the chief executive of the Company

whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 10 above. The

emoluments of the two (2012: two) individuals were as follows:

. BEEM=

AEBRERRTFMALTH  HP=F
ZTE-ZF =) RARARIEERE
EITHRAER  BEZMEFBERLEX
10T B TRE (ZE—ZF:
MB) ALZEemT :

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits Ha REMER 3,625 4713
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme  3RKIEFIET 23k 29 27
3,654 4,740

The emoluments of the two (2012: two) individuals were within the

WMEZ(ZE——F : WE) moF AL

following bands: ZHENFATEE :
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——4F
Headcount Headcount
A AER
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001,% 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 1 =
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,00078 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0017 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - 1

12. Earnings Per Share 12. BREF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners

of the Company is based on the profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$58,269,000 (2012: HK$119,268,000) and on
the number of 2,002,100,932 (2012: 2,002,100,932) ordinary shares of the

Company in issue during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for 2013 and 2012 does

not assume the exercise of the Company’s share options because the

exercise price of those options was higher than the average market price

in both years.

RRRGEE AEMSRERNZFTHIRE
A RHEB A FE(RE ) 4958,269,000% 7T
ZE— T4 11192680008 ) MER
RQ A B BT R $2,002,100,9328%
(ZZT——% :2,002,1009320%) 5t& -

R_E—ZFR_T—_F SREE
BF 2T EIERRARD P EREETT
- RARZEEREZTFEERNAM
BFEE 2 FHHE -
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13. Dividends 13. BRE
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Dividends recognised as distribution FABRBDIRZIRE
during the year:
Interim dividend, paid — HK$0.01 per share BIRNFPERE — — T —=4F
for 2013 (2012: HKS$0.02 per share for 2012) FIR001EBTL (ZE——F
——FE&KR002ETT) 20,021 40,042
Final dividend, paid — HK$0.0028 per share /}EHEKH\HHX 8 -4
for 2012 (2012: HKS0.05 per share for 2011) FH%0.00288 7T (—1; ——4F:
T ——FEER005ETT) 5,606 100,105
25,627 140,147
A final dividend of HK$0.0163 per share in respect of the year ended 31 EEERRNEBEE-_ZE—=%F1+_H
December 2013 (2012: final dividend of HK$0.0028 per share in respect =+t—BIEFERAREFR00163/E
of the year ended 31 December 2012), amounting to HK$32,634,000 T(ZE——F B2 ——F+=
(2012: HK$5,606,000) in aggregate has been proposed by the directors A=+—ALFERERKRESTR00028
and is subject to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual BIL) A 326340008 L (ZE—=

general meeting.

F 15,606,000/ 70) * HEAFRERENE
BT RFBF RS ELHER T AIE

o

it

\;
i

B HRGFERE ‘Q

.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—RHALFE

14. Investment Properties

14. REYE

HKS$'000

FAT
FAIR VALUE NFE
At 1 January 2012 N-—ZE——%—H—H 5117
Exchange realignment PE H A 192
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBEER 2 A EE I 653
At 31 December 2012 R-_T——F+-H=+—H 5962
Exchange realignment FE 5 3% (195)
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RERER 2 AFELN 196
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-A=+—H 5,963
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December REBEB ZREYWER-_ZE—=FEN_F

2013 and 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on those dates by Euro-Asia Real Estate Appraisers Firm, independent
qualified professional valuers not connected with the Group. Euro-Asia
Real Estate Appraisers Firm are members of the Institute of Valuers, and
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at
using the direct comparison approach by reference to market evidence of
recent transaction prices for similar properties in the similar locations and

conditions.

*_¢+_ﬂ:+*EIZA$TE LT~
EiE By EGEMEB S B (EHAE
BEWmEE B EREXMGERM)
Rt BHET 2 (HEFERE B
TEEMEBMBEEBMAGMEMESR
(Institute of Valuers)@ B - EAHAREE
% SN BTAEREREUME S
K EEMEDNERAERELEE - I
aERUWE (HE R RABUEER)
IR SERTEBERESL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE-_ZEZ—=F+-_A=+—RIEE

14. Investment Properties (Continued)
The carrying value of investment properties shown above are situated on

freehold land in Taiwan.

14. REWE 8)

EPREME (REENEXAR) 2R

A=

KA o

Fair value Significant unobservable Relationship of unobservable
hierarchy Valuation technique inputs(s) input(s) to fair value

DFE TAER 2 WARE

[BIREEE fh{ER % FERTBERZBARE BN TFEZBER

Level 3 Direct comparison method Capitalisation rate, taking into The higher the capitalisation rate, the
=% and income method account of the capitalisation of lower the fair value

BEERLEBREWEDE

The key inputs are:

TEHABER

A

Capitalisation rate;
Monthly rent;

BARE®

)
)
3) Price per square metre
)
)
)

SEIREE

rental income potential nature of the
property, prevailing market condition.
ERex  ZREBREHRTY
R BEMSRREERNER

Monthly rent, using direct market
comparable and taking into account
of age, location and individual factors
such as road frontage, size of property
and layout/design of the base level.
R EREEMISALERI
ErkiEhk LERERNEE -
LB ERERE  WEES
KR,/ &t e

Price per square metre, using market
direct comparable and taking into
account of location and other
individual factors such as road
frontage, size of property, etc. of the
base level.

BEFAHARER EREETSA
BRI E B R & & H A fE 5
HzE - ENERasE - »
FEEE

BERfexfs - A HEBE

The higher the monthly rent, the
higher the fair value

AR - AFEES

The higher the price per square
metre, the higher the fair value

FY KBRS - AFEES

—_
N
e}

&= [EBUHBHMBTEWH ‘

ML ——
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15. ¥% - BERRE

Furniture,
Freehold Leasehold Plant and Motor  fixturesand ~ Construction
land  Buildings improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment i progress Total
KAKHE B #B
Tt BT HENREE HERES "E k#fE  ERIE @t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr TR TARL TART THRL THRL TEr  TAx
cosT AR
At 1 January 2012 W-ZE-—&F
—RA—H 17,086 184412 50951 41,102 4514 55806 11342 365213
Exchange realignment B X A% 607 1803 837 374 84 1042 (15) 4732
Additions PN = = 3885 2159 329 15443 27097 43913
Disposals HE - - (7.873) (2,170) (1,957) (5,145) - (17,145)
Transfer B = = 174% 4261 = 4142 (25897) =
At31December 012 MZE—Z%
+-A=1+—H 17,693 186,215 65,294 45726 2970 71,288 12527 401,713
Exchange redlignment  [E ¥ 5% (570) 2008 1019 523 (34) 835 468 4469
Additions B - - 2146 084 374 7713 11653 22570
Disposals e = = (1529) - (635) (2007) = (4171)
Transfer B = = 54 3583 = 1,641 (5278) =
At31December2013  RMZZ—=%
+-A=1+-H 17123 188443 66,984 50516 2675 79470 19370 424581
DEPRECIATION Vil
At 1 January 2012 RZE-_4%
—-R-H = 49,005 5315 14210 2782 32,795 - 104,107
Exchange realignment [ 5% = 645 60 145 56 745 - 1651
Provided for the year FREE - 5671 11227 3169 454 12,694 = 33215
Eliminated on disposals 1 ERF 8 = = 4,197) (297) (1,155) 4373) = (10022)
At31December 012 MZZE—ZF
+-A=+-H = 55321 12405 17227 2137 41,861 - 128,951
Exchange realignment  FE X A% = 726 554 20 27 274 = 1,547
Provided for the year FREE - 3068 13,388 6,941 359 15470 = 39206
Eliminated on disposals 7 ERF 8 = = (496) = (404) (1461) = (2.361)
At31December 013 MZZE—=%
+ZA=1+-A - 59,115 25851 24,188 2,065 56,144 - 167363
CARRYING VALUES REE
At31December 2013 RWZE-=%
+-R=+-H 17123 129328 41133 26328 610 23326 19370 257218
At 31 December 2012 RZE——fF
+-A=1-H 17,693 1308% 52,889 28499 833 29427 12527 272,762
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15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
The carrying values of freehold land and buildings shown above are
situated on:

15. Y% - MERRE @
itk ALETIRET EEED L
SRR ) IR -

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET

Land in the PRC held under medium-term AP BIREEAR R P Bl 1t 5 RIS A
land use rights b ) 117,533 118,705
Freehold land in Taiwan PNE SR 7 K A ERE T 28,918 29,882
146,451 148,587

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil

Buildings 40 years

Leasehold improvements The shorter of the unexpired period
of the lease and estimated useful
life of 3 to 10 years

Plant and machinery 5-10years

Motor vehicles 3 - 5years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2 — 15 years

tdmE - BMERKEERE (EEZTE
BRON) REGREERBATFRFTE

IKAFREL I s

BF 405

THEMEEE REREEF G
FHAME RS EZE 10
F (ARG ERE)

RS Fa 23 5—104F

A 3—5%

RE  REKEE 2155

—_
w
=

&= [EBUHBHMBTEWH ‘

ML ——
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132 16. Prepaid Lease Payments 16. BT HAER
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—CfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx THT

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise  ZN(E 7 8 A+ A E KB4

€10z Moday [enuuy  paywi] Abojouyaa)-olg Aineag [einieN

leasehold land rights in the PRC FAFR B K BEAR H5 R B 4 3t 5 FR 4

under medium-term land use rights HaE 2 HE T HF AR 9,765 9,767
Analysed for reporting purposes as: FLESRABR O -

Non-current asset IETRBVEE 9,453 9,465

Current asset MENEE 312 302

9,765 9,767
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17. Goodwill 17. B8
HKS$'000
TET
COST AR
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—H—H 30,699
Exchange realignment R 136
At 31 December 2012 R_E——F+-_A=+—H 30,835
Exchange realignment FE 3, A% 732
At 31 December 2013 N-E—=F+=-F=+—H 31,567
IMPAIRMENT BB
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 WZZE—=F—HA—H ZT—=F+=
and 31 December 2013 BA=+—RARk-_ZE—=F+-A=+—H 3,192
CARRYING VALUES ARTEE
At 31 December 2013 W_E—=FE+=-A=+—H 28,375
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+=-B=+—H 27,643

g@ﬁ&ﬁ@mE%waE

.
=% —
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BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

17. Goodwill Continued)
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to an
individual cash generating unit, namely, sale of cosmetic products in the
PRC Cash Generating Unit (“CGU"). The carrying amounts of goodwill as at
31 December 2013 and 2012 is allocated to this CGU.

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period using a declining growth rate and cash flows over five years are
extrapolated assuming no growth rate, and discount rate of 8% (2012
8%). One key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit's past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of this unit to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of this unit.

17. BHE (&)

HREANRANES  BECESIEEZEY
HeEESEMN IRPERKEHEESE
REMZESELBEMN([BREeELE
i) e RZE—=FR-_T——-F+=
A=t+—RACBEREENSEEHR
SELEBM -

ReELEM OB REER
EBEFEETE - FEHEZERERED
#fE 2 BF B S TR B I (8 AR RS = R
EHZIREREER  MEFZIRER
BARBTERRZBRR KN R X
—T - 8%) HE - EREER
Btz m—BAIZRREMBFRER
A/ B e (BRERAEHERERER
) FRAMGFTRASELBEMNZBER
BEREREHMSERCTAHEE - &
BEME TAREFBRRZEAAER
EREPHHITSEPUREELEU 2K
HAEBLILREELELM 2 P OA

TH -

18. Inventories 18. &
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FHET
Raw materials AR 27,378 43,480
Finished goods UK R 19,669 23,947

47,047 67427
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19. Trade and Other Receivables

19. EZ R EMEWIRR

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B SRR 85,216 24,661
Less: allowance for doubtful debts T REREME (1,536) (1,338)
83,680 23,323
Prepayments TEFRIR 11,208 12,135
Other receivables E b FEIRBR TR 17,736 19613
Total trade and other receivables E b pEINER TR 112,624 55,071

The Group allows a credit period ranging from one to six months to its
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date,

AEEHET
Ef - RBSHREE

(RRWAMEREH) qu*” =

THESEFP— E/‘_\ﬂﬂ 215
SR
Y2 B 5

B ERER

which approximated the revenue recognition dates, at the end of the WERF (BB REEREE) R
reporting period. S
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Within 180 days 180H A 83,680 23319
81 days to 365 days 181HZE365H = 4
83,680 23,323
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an internal credit EERMNEMRZRR > ASESKRA
system to assess the potential customer'’s credit quality and defines HEERS  FHHERP Z%,\g\ﬁ :
credit limits by customer. Limits to customers are reviewed regularly. The WHERFEERE - AfKBESTEHR
majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired MEPZEERRE - st EEHsRE
have no history of defaulting on repayments. ZBSRWERNES  ERARIBOHE

Ho R B FRFOER ©

B HRGFERE ‘Q

.
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19. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued) 19. EZREMEBWERR (&)
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not EAHERBEZEZRERERZ
impaired ARiER

2013 2012

—E—=F —T——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

181 days to 365 days 181 H&E365H = 4

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREEH

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHT

Balance at the beginning of the year FUEERR 1,338 1,634
Amounts written off as uncollectible TR EIRR 2 B M e 5 (446) 68)
Allowance (reversal of allowance) on receivables [ U BR 3% {5 7% ) 644 (228)

Balance at the end of the year FiREER 1,536 1338
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired REREEFECENRECE Z BUER
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$1,536,000 (2012: R R ERHARE B1,536,00008 T (ZF —
HK$1,338,000), which have been identified with financial difficulties. The T4 :1,338000/87T) © AR EKHE
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. EALRGHANE - NEBEWEREH

MR EAEAS -
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20. Bank Balances and Cash 20. RITEEFRES
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES
Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and short-term RITEFLRASERAKEHABERE X
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The REEAR R=E Az AR 2R ERITE
amounts bear interest at market rates which range from 0.03% to 3.08% e BEFIBIEMSMEFTE - FH=E
per annum (2012: 0.03% to 3.15% per annum). N F003%FE3.08% (ZF— —4F : FF|
#0.03%ZE3.15%) °
At 31 December 2013, the Group's bank deposits of US$1,113,000 RZE—=F+-_A=+—H8" &84
(2012: US$2,251,000) (equivalent to approximately HK$8,626,000 (2012: 1,113,000 7T (ZF— =4 : 2,251,0003%
HK$17,451,000)) was denominated in a currency other than the functional 70) (A8 & 7 #98,626,000/ 7T (— & — —
currency of the relevant group entity. F 174510008 70)) 2 AN EBRITHE
FoDIREEEEERBIEEEUINZ
HHETE -
21. Trade and Other Payables 21. EZREMENERER
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Trade payables H 5 ERTERR 21,266 18,005
Deposits from customers EFP#He 58,176 30,815
Other tax payables E b RIA 8,116 8,009
Accruals ENER 54,935 49,037
Other payables H b FEATARK 12,017 9461
Total trade and other payables B 5 L HAM BRI ERE 154,510 115,327

B HRGFERE ‘Q

.
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21. Trade and Other Payables (Continued) 21. EZREMBENERR (@)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on RIpEHBEER  REZHHFER
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. P2 B S REMNERERRSTAT ¢
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 180 days 180H A 18,306 14,000
181 days to 365 days 181HZE365H 1,087 4,005
Over 365 days Hid365H 1,873 -
21,266 18,005
The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days. The Group BEERzTHEENROR - A&H
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables EHEVBRRERBER - AERAE
are settled within the credit timeframe. ERBRFIANREEERRAERN -
22. Deferred Income 22, EFEW R
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Prepaid treatment fees TANERE 7,779 5927
Deferred income represents the receipts via credit cards, cheques and BEWRERNEFPIEEXEARBE AR
cash from sales of beauty services to customers and recognised in the EAR XERBESWEZ2KIE - AR

profit or loss upon provision of the services to the customers. REFRUEREFTERRER
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans

(a)

Defined benefit plan

The Group's Taiwan subsidiaries participate in a central pension
scheme providing benefits to certain employees in accordance
with the Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan. The Group
has an obligation to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the
scheme to pay the benefits earned. The Group currently contributes
at 2% of the total salaries as determined and approved by the
relevant government authorities. Under the scheme, the employees
are entitled to retirement benefits equal to two months' salary for
each year of service for the first 15 years and one month’s salary for
each year of service following the 15 years, but not more than 45
months’ salary in aggregate on the attainment age of 60. No other
post-retirement benefits are provided.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the pension scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method. An actuarial valuation as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 was carried out by a qualified staff member of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan, who is a member of The Actuarial
Institute of the Republic of China. The actuarial valuation indicates
that the Group’s obligations under this defined benefit retirement
scheme are 2% (2012: 2%) covered by the deposits paid with the
Bank of Taiwan, Ltd.

(a)

23. RKEFEHE

BN
AEERENBARRERES
EEZX (BER]) 2 b REKRE
& UAETRERHERER - K
SEEETRREMAIAERH
BE 0 BAXMNEERBAAEZE
Mo NREBIRZF S B E2%IEH
HH - AR XA ERRGERE
ERALE - RIBBREFE - BEW
FRZEARBOT : RE15ER
BEE  8FAEEHSEXMEA
e RINER - R E1SERSF
Bz#& BFAZFEHAER—E
A& 2 RKEH - 1EE605%H FT
BRKEHNE X TSHBB45E A H
& o ANERE I EIE T E AR
®&@H -

REBBEKRSFEMAR ZER
FRE - DiRIE B IR AT RER
AR TS M RERFT1S 2 B & fE R TE AT
SRERTE BAERASMRUETE
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140 23, Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued) 23. EARBEHEE )
(@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHREAE (B
()  The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the () HETHREGRERAEAC
actuarial valuations were as follows: FERRKRMT :
2013 2012

—E—=F —E——4F

€10z Moday [enuuy  paywi] Abojouyaa)-olg Aineag [einieN

Discount rate BhIR R 1.90% 1.60%
Expected return on plan assets sHEIEE 2 a3k =R 1.90% 1.60%
Expected rate of salary increases AR S S e E 3.00% 3.00%
The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan BEHEBRRTEEEZ™
assets was HK$ 1,346,000 (2012: HK$2,038,000). EA1,346,0008 T (Z&—=

£ : 2,038,000/ 7T ) ©

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss in respect of the defined iy REZRMLTERFGE®E

benefit plans are as follows: RZEFMAT ¢

2013 2012

—E—=F —ET——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Current service cost I8 B AR TS AR AN 284 256

Interest on obligations (v Al 245 253

Expected return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 TEHAE (32) (37)

Net actuarial loss REEE TR = 34

497 506
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T—=Ft_A=1t—HLHFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

23

(i) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income inspect

of the defined benefit plans are as follows:

. BRIRERIFHE )

(a) ERBRFE (&)
(i) PEA 2 U EE HERRE A

AR BT

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Remeasurement on the net EHFFTEFEEEN
defined benefit liability: afE -

~ Expected return on plan assets —HEEE BRI (17) S

— Actuarial loss arising from — BV EEACREE
remeasurement E518 3,401 -
3,384 o

(iv)  The amounts included in the consolidated statement of

financial position arising from the Group'’s obligations in

(v) ZAKEDFALKRE MBI
BRZEBBAMEES S

respect of its defined benefit plans are as follows: EERal N
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——-F
HK$'000 HKS1000
FExT FAT
Present value of funded defined EHREAATEEENES
benefit obligations ZIHE 14,322 15610
Fair value of plan assets FrEIBEZ AFE (1,346) (2,038)
Remeasurement of defined benefit ~ E#st & F 2827
provision plan FTEl - (3,466)
Net liability arising from defined ERENaEEE
benefit obligations ZFaE 12,976 10,106

=

&= [EBUHBHMBTEWH ‘

ML ——
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N

23. BIRERGFE @)

142 23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)

“gz’ (@) Defined benefit plan (Continued) (a) EHREAE (B

= () Movements in the present value of the defined benefit v AFEEBRENEBREZ

% obligations in the current year were as follows: BEINT

g

5 2013 2012

& —E—=F —E——F

5 HK$'000 HK$'000

S Tl T

z

3 At 1 January w—A—Aa 15,610 13,810

% Current service cost IR IR AR A AN 284 256

c Interest on obligations BEBFE 245 253
Benefits paid BfEF (1,306) (886)
Actuarial (gains) losses BE (W) BB (17) 1,666
Exchange differences on foreign plans /&4t I ME X = %8 (494) 511
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 14,322 15610
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

23. BIRERGFE @)

(a) EFEBANFE (B

(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current Vi) RNEEHEEEATFEE
year were as follows: BT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
At 1 January m—HA—H 2,038 2,014
Contributions from the employer B 645 761
Expected return on plan assets FTEIE E 2 TBHIE 3R 32 37
Benefits paid BEF (1,306) (886)
Actuarial (losses) gains BE W (E518) 4 41
Exchange differences on foreign plans /85Nt EIME =58 (59) 71
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 1,346 2,038
Actual return on plan assets FHEIEE 2 B B 5 7

~
w

&= [EBUHBHMBTEWH ‘
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T—=F+-"A=+—HILHFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
(vi)  Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

The directors’ assessment of the expected return is based on
historical return trends and analysts’ predictions of the market
for the assets in the next twelve months.

The major categories of plan assets, and the percentage of
the fair value at the end of the reporting period for each
category are as follows:

23. RIRBERFHE (&)
(a) TEHEEBFIE (2)

(vi)

AEEHBEEATEL S
BT : ()

E=MERBEHRFE IR
BEBRERBRELRONEY
BEMBART_EAZE
BHETT

AEIEEZEERBRIUER
HREMEEE R ZERMEE
BEELAFEZA LN

A

14

2013 2012

—Zg—=F —FT——fF

% %

Deposits with financial institutions B TSI TT AR 22.86 2451
Short term bills RHER 4.10 9.88
Stocks %) 8.41 851
Bonds E% 9.37 1045
Others HAith 55.26 46.65

100.00 100.00
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(a) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

(Vi)

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current
year were as follows: (Continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination
of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

- If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher (lower),
the defined benefit obligation would decrease by
HK$13,227,000 (increase by HK$15,985,000).

- If the expected salary growth increases (decreases) by
1%, the defined benefit obligation would increase by
HK$15,811,000 (decrease by HK$13,346,000).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be
representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions
would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end
of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

23. BIRERGFE @)
EEEAE ()

(a)

(vi)

AEEHBEEATEL S
BT ()

BErTREBHAIERE
REBUR X RIBRFIE
e ATHEED Tﬁ)’b’fﬁéﬁ%
ERRNBEHEEEA 2
BEAREHRKME Ei
BRREFIEMET °

—  MREEI RN CH
) 100fE E Bh - A
TE 8 1R N & KR
13,227,000 7T (1€ 10
15,985,000) °

- WRBEBHH R
mes )% Bl E
BB A& A%
15,811,000 7t C&l 4
13,346,000/8 7T ) °

LIRE ST A gL TR
%mﬁ@ﬂ@ﬁZA%%
B BAAETHREIELHA
B ﬁﬁF“TKT 2R
SR EALRRER IR

AN - 25 B SR E o A
B EREMNEHIRED
RS HEAE A RAE
BURNRALGE - 58
REEE MBI RERER
EBEEMNEBRETRBL
BErEA N -

12,8

IJ

R ELEURRE D AT BT AR 73 A M
BRREGBEFRELEES) -

B HRGFERE ‘5

.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(b) Defined contribution plans

0]

(i)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the HK MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the
Labour Standards Law (as amended) in Taiwan (the “TW MPF
Scheme”). The HK MPF scheme and the TW MPF Scheme
are defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the HK MPF scheme and
TW MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% and 6%,
respectively, of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 for the HK
MPF Scheme while there is no cap to monthly income under
the TW MPF Scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest

immediately.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the PRC government. As stipulated by the
regulations of the PRC, these relevant subsidiaries participate
in various defined contribution retirement plans organised by
the relevant authorities for its PRC employees. The employees
are entitled to retirement pension calculated with reference
to their basic salaries on retirement and their length of
service in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for the
pension liabilities to these retired staff. The Group is required
to make contributions to the retirement plans which are
calculated based on certain prescribed rates and the salaries,
bonuses and certain allowances of its PRC employees. The
Group has no other material obligations for the payment of
pension benefits associated with these plans beyond the
annual contributions described above.

23. RIRBERFHE (&)
TR B

(b)

()

(if)

AEBBESBRH M QR
et EHRA AR BB RERBIE
PlEEEEANER 2 EE®R
TRHIERAEEEE (B
wiEREL)  ZREAE
BEE R (K1BE]) &L
dHlEAERTE ([aER
BesrEll)  BERBESE
Elka2aEEiTE AHEE
VEAATEZ EHEERR
REt&l - REBERBRESE
gElkpEREerE BEEx
REBAZBMETEEL#
FoEREIREERES
BRIAS% 6% > BiBRIE
el cBRABRABA LR
A250008 7 A ERE
SHETESABRALR -
TR SBREEME -

AREBEFBEAENBARZ
BERTEHRMEE BR
BERBRKRBAEIKE - B
FAK B QR ERESBEER
ME RETEAEREEZ
MEEREHREREEREZTE
BMETRAGE - BREAE
WER Z BRRE TH IR B A B
AR ZRTE  HEFNE
R 2 BN & R IR F
AE - FERTRERAR
BRBTHPRARS - MA
SERAERE BRI EE
BN HRBRRETERE
EREAEEFBEAEREER
ZE e B RE TR
8o B EatF 82 4808
BRARBAMME BRTHELDE
MEFRZI  AEEHE
EREBEREE -
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23. Retirement Benefits Plans (Continued)
(b) Defined contribution plans (Continued)

(i)

(Continued)

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$17,961,000
(2012: HK$18,743,000) represents contributions paid on
payable to these schemes by the Group in respect of the
current accounting period.

24. Share Capital

23. EARBEHEE )
(b) EREMMETE (8)
(i) (%)
HABRRZIEXNAR
17,961,000% 7T (= & — =
& 118,743,000 7T) * T A
EERBTETHBR K
FERRZERT I 2 1K -

24, B

Number
of shares Share capital

[igvip | [}
HK$'000
FERT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEBITZ TEK
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 R-_ZT——F—A—8 —T——F
and 31 December 2013 +ZA=+—HBR=ZF—=F
+=-A=+—~” 4,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRER

At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2013

R-T——F—A—H ZZT—_F
+-—A=t+-—HER-_ZE—=F
+=-—A=+—8H 2,002,100,932

200,210

N
N

&= [EBUHBHMBTEWH ‘

ML ——



148

N

€10z Moday [enuuy  paywi] Abojouyaa)-olg Aineag [einieN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

25. Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders on 11
March 2002, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. Under the Old Scheme, the Company may grant
options to full-time employees (including executive or non-executive
Directors) of the Company or its subsidiaries to subscribe for the shares
at a consideration of HKS1 for each lot of share options granted. Options
granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant. The Old
Scheme will remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 11
March 2002.

There were amendments to the Old Scheme as detailed in the circular to
shareholders dated 8 April 2011 and all amendments were approved at
annual general meeting on 13 May 2011 ("AGM").

A new share option scheme (“New Scheme”) with terms exactly same
as the amended Old Scheme was also approved at the AGM on 13 May
2011. Upon the approval of the New Scheme, the amended Old Scheme
was terminated at the AGM on 13 May 2011.

Options granted may be exercised during such period as would be
determined by the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) and
notified to each grantee upon grant of the option, but in any event not
later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. The subscription
price for shares under the New Scheme may be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion but in any event will not be less than the higher
of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option, which must be
a business day; and (b) the average of the closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant option.

25.

AR El

BEBRERN -_TEZ-_F=A+—HES8
ZEERER  ARRRMT —ERK
EE (B8 xZEMERIER
HEEHTEEREERES - BEBEER
gl KRB AARRKENBARZ
2BES (BERTESIIRNITES)
BREATRERDZRRE  SHIEER
BREZREBIATL - BBEALTHERE
B AR ET28 A i TR 2 SRR AE o
EHszARBE T _F=-At+—
HiAM - AEA+F -

BB EET (HESRAMA-T
——EMANBZBEBR) - BFAE
HER-F——FHAT=ABTZR
RBEAE (RRBFAE)) LB
£ o

o RZFE-——FRAAT=BEITZ
BRERFEAE £ - BUIRALERT &R A
sHE| ([FrEH81)) - #at 8l 2 R g e
FIERTBI 2R 2R - REET 81
BER  ARBFR_FT——FAA+
ZRBTZERRBFRE ERILEER
Eatdl o

REEAFEAIRARRESE ([EF
) RO RRERFRE L NS & A
BAZ BT ERBE - HEEAIER
T XAREERRERRET TFA
176 - REEFE > ROREEAIHE
FERRBBEE  HEEEBERT
RBEBETSERATEERZESE Q)
RRBERH S (WAREER) K
MEBLXAEARERATUTE &
LR ERFERRER L AR AESE
X8 BRORBXAEARERART
HUTHE -
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BHE-_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The Company may grant share options to specified participants over and
above the scheme mandate limit or the refreshed scheme mandate limit
referred to above subject to shareholders’ approval in general meetings
and the issue of a circular.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) must
not exceed 30% of the relevant class of securities of the Company (or the
subsidiary) in issue from time to time. No options may be granted under
any schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result in the
limit being exceeded.

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the New Scheme
was 61,564,600 (2012: 4,564,788) (representing 3.1% (2012: 0.23%) of
the shares of the Company in issue at that date). The total number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the New
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any point in time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital in
issue or with an aggregate value in excess of HKS5 million based on the
closing price of the shares at the date of each grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

25.

AR REEE (@)
AAFATAETLEERLBB st
BB ERENE S B RERE 2R
- WAREREEREASEL 21t
HERFIEBE

A RRIEF T B R AR A (HHBAF)
EREMEFEEREBRRITREZHAE
REETATEREITZRODEE - T
FHBBANR (HEABHBLRR) TR
BT 2 ARBARIESFZ230% - KR
BESEEUMBITESEARE - B
TEREARR (HEAMBRR) 2E
fa] 5T &R R HE

RZE—=F+=-A=+—8 " BEH
FFEIE R LB RITE 2 RIREFT ISR
1B E B £61,5646000 (=T — = F:
4,564,7880%) ({5 A2 B8 B E BITRHD
30% (ZZF—ZF 1 023%)) o REAR
AR E SR - ARIBFTE S AR
LRREETSRMDBE - TEBBAR
AMEA KR B EITRMI0% - REAR
NEIRRBEIER - B ATEEMA
—EFERNEERRAEERRRE
FULAIT{E R P B 1T RS IR T 2 IR 1D
HE THEBREARAREMEMEZER
TIRD1% - EBERRIBIUFERITES
REZE (T8E) REBHLE+T=[@A
HRAER 2 RRENERRQRDE
FTRRAN0.1% + SRR H B HARR (o Uk 7
BT 8 2 B {E B 185,000,000/ T © HA
HREBARDRPELE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-ZT—=F+-A=+—RHLFE

25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. RBREFTE (@)
The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options TERBEEREHE-_ZT——FR-_F—=
granted under New Scheme held by employees during the years ended 31 FT+ZA=+T—BILFERRBREN
December 2012 and 2013; HEREHTBHEERAECRREZE
& :
Lapsed/ Lapsed/
forfeited Granted Cancelled forfeited Outstanding
Exercisable Exercise Outstanding during Outstanding during during during during
Date of grant period price at1.1.2012 the year at1.1.2013 the year the year the year 31122013
R=B-=% R=B-=% R=B-=%
-R-8 ERXN/ -A-H Emx%/ +=A=t-8
RiLAH Gyid] e AT L AT FREH FREH L AT
4 April 2012 4 April 2013 to HK$1.90 35957733 (35957,733) - - - - -
—E-F 3 Apiil 2021 1907
mAmA ZZ-CEMAN
RE-Z--F
mA=A
4 April 2012 4 April 2013 to HK$1.90 17978866 (16457,270) 1521,5% - (1121,176) (400420) -
—Z-CF 3 April 2021 1907
mAmA “E-ZENAN
RE-Z %
mA=AH
4 April 2012 4 April 2014 to HK$1.90 17978866 (16457,270) 1,521,59% - (1121,176) (400420) -
T 3 April 2021 1907
mAmA “Z-MENAN
RE_Z_-F
mA=R
4 April 2012 4 April 2015 to HK$1.90 17978866 (16457,270) 1,521,59% - (1,121,176) (400420) -
—F-CF 3 April 2021 1907
MAMmA “Z-nEMAR
AE-%--%
mA=A
19 April 2013 19 April 2013 to HKS0.99 = - - 35236972 - (11,712,290) 23524682
—5-=% 19 April 2022 099%TT
mAthE  —Z-ZFMmAT
NBZE=Z-=
EMATNHE
10 May 2013 10May 2013 10 HK90.99 - - - 38039918 S - 38039918
—F-=% 10 May 2022 099%7T
AATH ZE-=ERAT
SE S
nATA
89,894,331 (85329543) 4,564,788 73276890 (3363528) (12913,550) 61,564,600
Exercisable at the end of the year Nil
FREEIR i
Weighted average exercise price HKS1.90 HKS1.90 HKS1.90 HKS099 HKS099 HKS0.99 HKS0.99

METSTEE 190587T 190587T 190%87T 099%7T 099%7T 0998TT 09987C
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 25. RIREHE ()
On 4 April 2011, the Company granted share options (2011 Options”) RZZE——FMNANE - XABRET
to certain employees to subscribe for a maximum of 90,895,381 shares 12 B % I 7] ;R B 5% % 1%90,895,38 1 I I 17
and was vested over a four-year period subject to the achievement of ZRRE (ZE——RRE) - BERK
performance targets determined by the board of directors. EERNFEANGE  BEEERVEE
HEEEMETCBERAER -
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the REEREHAREER XEESEE]
number of the 2011 Options that are expected to be ultimately vested HHEBHEREBE T ——FRRER
and 86,330,593 options were lapsed up to 31 December 2012. As at 31 Brls#y BEHEZZT——-F+=
December 2013, after taking into account the fact that the performance A=+H8A&IL 86330593/ EE X
target was not met and the leaving of an employee who was granted e RZTE—=F+_A=+—0 &
the share options which were still unvested at the time of the leaving, AT RIRIEIERBEER] - L —RERR
the Group further revised the original estimate of the number of the REZEENREARRERE A&
2011 Options that are expected to be ultimately vested and the impact B MASEBIEHEREREB =
of the revision of estimate during the vesting period of approximately T ——FRBREHE CREETHET -
HK$559,000 is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative REBHBEITIREGTBRFTIIZER
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to #9559,000/ 7T + DREEKRER + BUE
the share option reserve. RS RMHERT T - I HRRE R
HIEHRERE -
On 19 April 2013, the Group cancelled the remaining 3,363,528 2011 R-ZZE—=ZFNA+IB KEBEFH
Options and accounted for such cancellation as an acceleration of vesting 2 T3363528-F— —F R\ Wi
and therefore recognised immediately approximately HK$919,000 that P ET ARG B AR - B UL BN
otherwise would have been recognised for service received over the REBFNELEFHAR T B TE
remainder of the vesting period. SR RAT R 2 S5 - £919,00078
5T o
Following the cancellation of the aforesaid remaining 2011 Options, an AT T - —FRREE - K
aggregate of 73,276,390 share options (“2013 Options’) were granted to SERAEARFEFEHITE MEMEER
the Chief Executive of the Company and other employees of the Group. 4B ET73,276,800RRIE ([ZFE—=F
Details are set out below: RIKHE]) o FFIFHIIAT
Number of
share options
granted
RERBREHE
Grant date A
19 April 2013 —T-=FMA+NAB 35,236,972
10 May 2013 —E—=FRA+H 38,039,918

73,276,890

(87 8 B 264 B ‘5
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The newly granted 2013 Options will be vested over four years in four
different tranches, which commence from the date falling on the
publication of the audited financial results of the Group for the financial
year 2014, subject to the achievement of performance targets determined
by the Board of Directors for each of the years which were set out in
the awards at the time they were granted. Also, the option holders can
only exercise the 2013 Options nine years after the date of granting the
options provided that if the employment or service with the Company
or any of the subsidiaries of the option holders is terminated with cause
or the option holders resign from their employment or service without
good reason (as stipulated in the share option scheme), the 2013 Options
granted but not yet exercised will lapse automatically. Accordingly, the
vesting period for these options under accounting treatment is regarded
as a nine-year period, which is from the date of grant to the beginning of

the earliest exercisable date of the options.
The estimated fair values of the 2013 Options granted on 19 April 2013

and 10 May 2013 were approximately HK$12,670,000. These fair values
were calculated using the Binomial Tree Pricing Model.

The inputs into the model were as follows:

25.

AR REEE (@)

FEE Y T FRREEH TR
M e AEETE - e REE
CERHHEEE ARt N THER
B RBIELAVEENESSNER
ZEERBAE (RELRBERHN
BEABEMR) o ok - BIEREA
BAR-E—=FRREFLBBHEN
ERITEZSRRE - BWRRERS
ABARA R S AE A B A T 2 B R
SRR ESRR I K RRIERE AER
B g 1 BB R 2 LH IR LIRS (1N’
R BIFAE) - HFTEE B M RTE
oS ERREAB R - Bt
RRENEBET SRS FHEAN
£ AREBERRESEATED

RZE—=FNWA+ILhBERZZE—=F
FA+ABHZ T —=ZFRRENME
FAFEAE412,670,0008 7T © Lt AF
BENERAZEEXEEBERGE -

BREAZBAZEMT

Grant date 19.4.2013 10.5.2013
—g-=f —B-=f

wHAH MA+HA EA+H
Weighted average share price FH B B2 IR E HK$0.65 HK$0.63
as at date of grant 065787T 06377t
Exercise price TEE HK$0.99 HK$0.99
0994 7T 0997 7T

Time to maturity ZIHAHARR 10 years 10 years
105 105

Expected volatility SEE L] 39.70% 39.63%
Dividend yield REE 1.99% 1.99%
Risk-free interest rate 4R & Fl| K 0.89% 0.95%
Fair value of share options AR 2 AN FHE HK$0.1808 HK$0.1713

0180878 7T 01713387
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25. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. Changes in variables
and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of the options.

Expected volatility was determined by historical daily volatilities of the
Company’s share prices as at the valuation date.

The Group recognised approximately HK$1,040,000 share based payment
expense (2012: reversal of share based payment HK$28,031,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in relation to share options granted by the Company during the current
year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group also revises estimates of the
number of the 2013 Options that are expected to be ultimately vested.
As at 31 December 2013, after taking into account the leasing of several
employees who are granted the 2013 Options which are still unvested
at the time of leaving, the Group revises the original estimate of the
number of the 2013 Options that are expected to be ultimately vested
and the impact of the revision of estimate during the vesting period of
approximately HK$269,000 is recognised in profit and loss.

25.

AR REEE (@)

SE R A AR 2 B R R
% NERNEE Y REGHTEL o 2

HRBREHALENRRIES AT

{7 B8R -

FEHREREHESHERA AR AR
BrBESHRBET -

REBERGEEBEREME2EKER
REEFEARARRQ R AR 2 SRR ERAY
1,040,000 TRMD A FHALZ (ZT—=
F BB F3828,031,00087T) °

RBERBEER  ARETETHAY
BHEKEBE T =—FRREHEB 2
fh
H

TER - —=F3KRE
ZEERBHERRERBRIDHER &
AEBETHHBASKEBRRESR
BZREMFTHET - REBHBEE
ST 2 R RKI269,0008 7T - BERIE
R MER ©

B HRGFERE ‘5

.
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26. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised and

movements thereon during the current or prior years:

26. IEIERIIE
AEERBEEERR T BREEHE
BE (BE) UBRESBHEIIMT -

Undistributed
Allowance Revaluation Other  earnings of
for bad and of Defined  Unrealised  short-term PRCand
doubtful  investment benefit  profitson  temporary overseas
debts  properties liability inventories  differences subsidiaries Total
PRI AR
Rgsh
Ef it A%  HtEH WEARZ
AEERGE REVE FHEE REERN  EREE ROREA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TEL FET FET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F
—HA—A 334 760 4239 5,045 (38) (15,662) (5322)
Exchange realignment [ 5 5% 1 143 233 (39) (195) = 154
(Charge) credit to profit ~ FBRFRET A
or loss (k) (50) 81) 278 1,236 (319 (5680) (4612
Earnings distributed B RET| - - - = 10464 10464
At31December 2012  RZE—ZfF
+-A=1+-H 295 822 4,750 6,243 (548) (10,878) 684
Exchange realignment [ 5 % 40 (26) (160) 189 21 (322) (258)
Credit (charge) to profit BRI A
or loss (k) 4 (33) 550 (662) 2% (3,265) (3,342
Earnings distributed EAIRER - - - - = 3,890 3890
At31 December 2013 RZFT—=F
+-A=+—-H 379 763 5,140 5,770 (503) (10575) 974
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26. Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$208,926,000 (2012: HK$257,339,000) available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised of such
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The Hong
Kong tax losses of approximately HK$43,390,000 (2012: HK$48,808,000) do
not expire under the current tax legislation in Hong Kong and all other tax
losses will expire from 2014 to 2018 (2012: 2013 to 2017).

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was HK$61,313,000
(2012: HKS$59,435,000). No liability has been recognised in respect of
these differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The unused tax losses will expire as follows:

26. IEILERIE ()

RBREHBLEER AEEEAXHA
T T8 85 18 #9208,926,000 7T (Z & — —
F 1 257,339,000 7T) A] FA 1E K 85 R 2R
55?’1%IJ AR AREEEBZEFTR A
ER AR EBEERECEHEE
J;Z% *ET;E/EIETT@%%%%EWU BFENE
&5 18 #943,390,0008 T (=T — = F
48,808,000/8 ) TR FEFAPRER - MATA
HMHRBEEBAIER -_Z—NFE_F
*)\EﬂJH}%(_;**E —E—=%F
E-T—HFRIH) -

RREHELEER - HTB AR ARSI

wmA (WARERELERIESE) HE2Y
Eq%%’éi%@%éiz%&,mz,ooo;‘%ﬁ (ZE—=
£ 1594350008 7C) c WEER I FEHE
WREE REARSEIEHBEHY
BrEREzEDRRE BAEZERATR
R KA REREE o

APAHBEBRBR THNFEEER

2013 2012

—Zg—=F —T——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

2013 —E—=F - _
2014 —ET—mF 2,596 58,651
2015 —E—HRF 78,689 77,431
2016 ZE—RF 56,071 55,175
2017 —E—+F 17,555 17,274
2018 —E-N\F 4,313 =
159,224 208,531

Deferred taxation has been provided in full in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Group’s PRC and overseas subsidiaries arising since 1
January 2008 as the directors consider that such earnings are estimated to
be distributable in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax has been provided
for in respect of the temporary differences attributable to such profits
amounting to approximately HK$134,962,000 (2012: HK$163,595,000).

ANEBEFET BB AR RTINS B
ANREIAEZEEN\F-—H—HEBMEXE
ZARDIREF - 1EH 2 BUE T B 8 B
# BERABEERALBBAGHAR
AIRERAIED R - AEBEE IR S
L%;Eﬁéﬂzﬁﬁﬁ—ir%%ﬁ{”ﬁﬂj%ﬁkﬁlﬁﬁé
8 #9134,962,0008 T (Z & — = F:
163,595,000567T) °
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27. Operating Leases 27. RREMRELN
The Group as lessee AEBERBEABEA
During the year, the Group made rental payments for office premises and FR - AEERBSEHAOMRBABRD
stores under operating leases as follows: EVERIEHHEHSOT ¢
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Minimum lease payments IR 41,092 29,325
Contingent rental payments ARSI 17,537 18,638
58,629 47,963

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

which fall due as follows:

RIBEHREER  REBREBET AR
HEEHNARN 2 ARRIEHES AR
REZEBERIDT :

2013 2012

—E—=F T4

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET T

Within one year —FR 13,366 15,173
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_ZERF (BIEEREME) 7,494 12,558
Over five years HBidREF 1,927 200
22,787 27,931

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its leased properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed
for an average term of five years.

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for contingent rental payable,
if any, when the amounts are determined by applying a percentage of
turnover of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such contingent rentals.

REMHFANAEERETHEDE
MAXMZHEE - BHKLERR - A
FHRHASE  HEAWREEES -

PRBEAREREEANHEAE I
TEREEMNzRRABEAE (NE - %
HEHE EXEX A LFEEE
) REARTARRLEETARAIR
HE2EH -
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27. Operating Leases (Continued)

27. BEHEY @)

The Group as lessor AEBEERBEBEA

Property LS

Property rental income earned during the year was HK$3,233,000 (2012: FRNBRMAABz2ER2ERAR
HK$2,886,000), net of outgoings of HK$199,000 (2012: HK$210,000) for 3,233,000 & (= B — — 4 : 2,886,000
renting office premises. All of the properties held have committed tenants Bir) HEMBRHEERAETMERS
for the next one to five years. 199,000% 7T (= & — = £ : 210,000

T ARERBZAEMERRE—Z
RO EETAM -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants R EHEEEE  AEEHEBE,PEE]
for the following future minimum lease payments: Az BEHEHESMNZAT
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year — &R 3,904 2375

In the second year to fifth year inclusive F_EFAF (BIEEEMTF) 980 2,231
4,884 4,606

28. Capital Commitments 28. BAREE
2013 2012
—E—=fF -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition
of property, plant and equipment
contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements

BERTHERNGR G M HRA R R
BRAMEYR - BB MR
ZEARRX
14,926 8,499

—_
w
~N

&= [EBUHBHMBTEWH ‘
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with related

parties, which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The

significant transactions with these parties during the year are as follows:

(A) Transactions

(i) Connected parties

29. BERBEBATIRZZHE

FA-AEEDEABALETEAR
5 MBBRMESR EMARRZERE
BEBEBATTHERABEALT - F
W ARETHEABFEATETZERR
S0

(A) XF

(i) BEAL

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
Name of company Nature of transactions HK$’000 HKS$'000
NEER REME THET TET
Companies controlled by individuals who
collectively have joint control over the
Company'’s ultimate holding company and
are also executive directors of the Company:
BRI AR N2 AR RASIEAR 22 A1 fA]
RBARFIRITEEZ MAAALHER LA
MEZEARIETETNHEEESE Rental income 16 16
He W
EEBRERELERNHBRAT Rental income 16 16
HelE
Company controlled by substantial
shareholder:
TERRAEGIRF
CA NB Limited Consultancy fee expenses 4,416 4416
BEMERA
Directors of the Company:
KL EJEE -
Individuals who collectively have joint control Rental expenses 7,303 7391

over the Company’s ultimate holding
company and are also executive directors of
the Company

SR HRIEHI AR RN REZER A RIFRA
RAERNBHITERZEAAL

ik
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures Continued) 29. BERBEBHALIRZ Z2HE

(%)
(A) Transactions (Continued) (A X5 (&)
(i)  Compensation of key management personnel (i) FEREEASZHRMH
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EENAMEEZTEAEBR
management during the year was as follows: FRAZMEWT -
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Short-term benefits %2 HAR A 16,553 18,257
Post-employment benefits BERR1E 2 A 217 186
Equity-settled share based payments IR A = A AR 15X 468 80
17,238 18,523
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EZERFETHRABZHE
determined by the remuneration committee having DHEFMNEESKL2EMER
regarded to the performance of individuals and market KR RMSBEEETE -

trends.

(27 8 B LG T X% B ‘@
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29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(B)

Other arrangements

0]

(if)

(iii)

Under a licensing agreement, a director of the Company
granted to Natural Beauty Cosmetics Company Limited ("NB
Taiwan"), a subsidiary incorporated and operated in Taiwan, a
license to use a skin test software from 1 January 1997 to 31
December 2012 for a nominal consideration of New Taiwan
dollars (“NT") $1. The agreement is terminated during the
year.

On 5 October 2001, NB Taiwan entered into two separate
licensing agreements with a director of the Company. Under
the agreements, the director agreed to license a number of
trademarks to NB Taiwan, on an exclusive basis, for a nominal
consideration of NTS$1. The licensing agreements will be
effective till the expiry of the registration of the respective
trademarks, which are in 2015 and 2019.

On 10 November 2008, 12 January 2009 and 15 October
2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng and Dr. SU
Sh-Hsyu (collectively the “Licensors”) and the Company (the
“Licensee”) entered into a license agreement and subsequent
amendments at a consideration of HK$10 for the royalty-free,
fully paid-up, perpetual and non-revocable licence and
privilege throughout the world to use the certain trade marks

on exclusive use and non-exclusive use basis.

29. BENRBBAIRZZHE

(&)
(B)

H 2 5k

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BB ERE  ARFE
EUARBARET Y ([H
s IT MmEAZE
miRMBRAR ([BAXSR
] REEEMRIIREE
2 [t B A R]) % H T AT
AE—NAhtF—A—HBHZE
—E-ZHF+ZA=+T—H
HEEARERE®HE-F
BiHBEDRFARKLL

WZ_ZEE—F+HAHB 8
BINAGIGE VIR
BREZEHE EHRESR
BURBARET B IT
MEAEREBRELET
PZE 2 Ao i o Bl Er eI A2
HEE—EEYN EEEH
22 aMmEIERBA L (B
—T-RFHE_TAF) -

RZZENF+—A+H -
ZEENF—A+ZARZ
ZEENF+ATEHE - &
EELT - HENE T REF
BEELT(RBIEER]) &
RNTE ([ERER]) 5] F
AR R EIBIEET - BA10
BT ZRERERIFITEE
A& #2  KAMRTA
BE A RS AR
EHREMERBEBRRIIFBRE
EERETEER-
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2. BERBBAIRGZHE
(&)
(B) Other arrangements (Continued) (B) H\@TIEF(%%)

29. Connected and Related Party Disclosures (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

On 10 November 2008 and 12 January 2009, the Company
(the “Licensor”) and Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu (the “Licensee”) entered
into a license agreement and subsequent amendments at a
consideration of HK$10 for a non-exclusive, royalty-free and
perpetual licence (including the right to grant sub-licences)
to use certain trademarks solely in relation to the operation
of resorts and hotels, for education related purposes and in
the field of healthcare and only in the jurisdiction in which
such trademarks are registered or have been applied for.
The Licensee shall offer the Company the opportunity to
participate in any new investments.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu, Dr. SU Chien-Cheng,
Dr. SU Sh-Hsyu and Natural Beauty Magazine Yang Chio
Ling as the assignors and the Company as the assignee
entered into a trade mark assignment pursuant to which the
assignors assigned certain trade marks to the assignee for a
consideration of HK$10.

On 15 October 2009, Dr. TSAI Yen-Yu as the licensor and the
Company as the licensee entered into a licence agreement
pursuant to which the licensor granted to the licensee a
non-exclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up, perpetual and
irrevocable license and privilege throughout the world to use
certain licensed trademarks only in respect of the businesses
conducted by the licensee for a consideration of HK$10

(iv)

~A) ([T ]) BEHEE
=+ ([ERAETT ) RISLAFA
Wk R EARER] - LA0E T
ZREFXLIFBR - 25T
LB NOK AR R A #
(BHREDEFFRIEZER)
UERETHEE  EEAHR
REBBRNEBEER - #
EHRERERRIZEBES
HERBRASR  LEAR
BiECEfCBmaEfz
EAEEREREHENE - &
BETARTARRKS
BARAZEEMMHRER
B o

RZZENFTA+TER
EMEBL - HEAEL
&R =5 5518 - K Natural Beauty
Magazine Yang Chio Ling ({E
REEA) BARE (ERHE
BN UEEEES - B
bt HEALIOB T ZRE
MAEAEES TR -

RZZZEANF+A+ERA -
BREET (ERAEER) &
AAF (IERERER) 7]
SRR o Bt - BE
FLA0B T 2 RE - MER
BARLEIEBR  RETE
FREB- B2  KAMRT
AI S 2 B AR R R - LA
REREHMERE THEERD
1Z WEERRERES K
EEBERBEARE -
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30. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

A summary of the statement of financial position of the Company is as

30. AT ZBBARRBR
AATZHBERRBEES T -

follows:
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHExT FHET
Assets BE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEB AR ZIRE 169,398 169,602
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 317,557 321,033
Other receivables E b EIBR TR 3,813 3,178
Bank balances and cash IRITEFE MRS 16,458 16,009
507,226 509,822
Liabilities afE
Other payables H b FEATERK 2,573 2,898
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIBT B A RIZIA 34,892 34,915
37,465 37,813
Net assets BEFE 469,761 472,009
Capital and reserves B %
Share capital N 200,210 200,210
Reserves (Note) & (MsE) 269,551 271,799
469,761 472,009
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30.

31.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company 30. &2 B Z BB REH*K (4)
(Continued)
Note: M5 -
Share
Share option  Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BREE ARERE REEF et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2012 R—E——F—H—H 41,016 30,154 88,099 159,269
Profit for the year REZHF - - 280,708 280,708
Reversal of share based payment BRI 5K S (28,031) - (28,031)
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) REDIERZ IS (FFE13) = - (140147)  (140,147)
At 31 December 2012 R-_E——F+-_HA=+—H 41,016 2,123 228,660 271,799
Profit for the year NEEHA = = 22,339 22,339
Recognition of equity-settled share based payment MR A S EE RN TR - 121 - 121
Cancellation of unvested share options FEEE R BR B R AR A = 919 = 919
Transfer upon cancellation of share option E R i S S M s = (2483) 2483 =
Dividends recognised as distribution (Note 13) BRAD RIS (FE13) - - (25,627) (25,627)
At 31 December 2013 WZZ—=F+-"A=+—H 41,016 680 227,855 269,551

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balances.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs or issue of new debt.

31.

EXERER
AEEFBEEREAERETEREEA
HERQEER  TREEZSEBRRBRAR
T AEEFEEFREALR - K
SEBERKEXFRAR o

AEBzERNGRERRAEMASEE
MARRNRAREREARE#ER  BRED
BTN - RBERRERT

RRABEEBFF—ERFTERER -
R Ll AR —R  EX@ERE
ERARZTRERNZEBER - REE
F2EFH AREBEBRNEE - %
1T KRR D K BEITHEB 277
A FEEBEELRGE -

B HRGFERE ‘5

.
=% —

MLt



o
N

€10z Moday [enuuy  paywi] Abojouyaa)-olg Aineag [einieN

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

32. Financial Instruments

(a)

(b)

32. @I A

Categories of financial instruments (a) &I AEER
2013 2012
—g—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FHT FHET
Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables BRI
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BHEESRIEESEEY) 608,825 475377
Financial liabilities = N=ki=
Amortised cost BHRCAR 60,342 27,465
Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERREEBERBEE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bank balances and cash and trade and other payables.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

(i)  Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to bank balances due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rates. It is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the short-term bank deposits. The
directors of the Company consider the Group's exposure to
the interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing bank
balances are within a short maturity period.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy in relation to interest rate risks. The directors of the
Company will continuously monitor interest rate fluctuation
and will consider hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

AEBEZTESRTABREES R
Hip YRR - VITEFRE SN
REZREMBNER - FTR
TRAZFHABORERBMERE - 1t
ST A BRERER KR E&E
Bk 2 BERENR TN - EEEHN
EENMEEZERR - WHERLE
BRIREUE E 1 -

R

() FIFEmEE
ERBRITTEMNEEKE <
HMAEBARRITEFTET
ReRENERAR -t
AEEZEARTHERNS
AEBEYE R FENER
R ARAEERR AE
BFTE S 2 F R RIS T E
R RAKFERTHEER
ySEINE I

RS B AT I LA R E
AR TE AT (] A R EREK o A
REAEEBHEEENXE
B YRR EREREZEY
AR R
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32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for the bank balances
at the reporting date. For bank balances, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of balances at the end of the
reporting date were outstanding for the whole year. 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease (2012: 20 basis
points increase and 5 basis points decrease) are used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points higher/5 basis
points lower (2012: 20 basis points higher/5 basis points
lower) and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 would
increase by HK$1,015,000/decrease by HK$254,000 (2012
increase by HK$865,000/decrease by HK$216,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its bank balances.

32. €@ T A (&)

(b)

BBEE

EEEREE (&

misEkE (8)

(i)

FIEm b ()
BURE DT
AT BRE DT HIRERTT
mﬁ \iRE B EIFTE E 2 F)
FEmEE - LiRITET
ME @ A HBREHREEE
HEA EGFSRETER
MEE - WEBEEEAER
B BB R R R b B ER A 220
18 5 2 38 00 KSR = 2R >
ZE—ZF  20EEBLE M
RoBEERRL)  RMERE
BHANEEBEEESH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F+-_A=+—RHALFE

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk
The Group has bank deposits denominated in foreign

currency which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Management considers that the Group is not exposed
to significant foreign currency risk as the majority of its
transactions are either denominated in functional currency
of the Group's subsidiaries or in USD. Since USD is pegged to
HKD, the foreign currency risk is minimal.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which may cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arisen from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with good reputation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BHE-_T—=F+-A=+—HILFE

32. Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

()

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the ten largest trade receivable balances
accounted for approximately 10% (2012: 38%) of the trade
receivables and the largest trade receivables balance was
approximately 2% (2012: 15%) of the Group’s total trade receivables.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical locations
are mainly PRC excluding Hong Kong, which accounted for 94%
(2012: 76%), and Taiwan, which accounted for 5% (2012: 21%) of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2013.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on its

operating cash flows as a significant source of liquidity.

The Group's remaining contractual maturity for its trade and other
payables falls within 30 to 90 days as at 31 December 2012 and
2013.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-ZT—=F+-A=+—RHLFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries 33. B ARG
Details of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2012 and 2013 are RZEBE—Z—FRZFE—=F+=A=+
as follows: —A- $A57W%Aﬁj§i’|%@? :
Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation  paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations  share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
ik
HRAIR BESIA ANERAKELR
e feny  HREZERRE FisCRTRATELA FEEE IERH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B# 53 B% 53

2013 0 2013 00 2013 m 2013 m
ZE-=f “%--F -§-zF “T--F -§-f “T-°F ZB-=F “T-F

Shanghai Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC 15529,980,000 - B 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
Company Limited* EIARE 2998000057 beauty products
HEBRRERERA AN FERHEERRFAED
Shanghai Natural Beauty Sanfian The PRC RMB8000,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale and retai of skin care and
Cosmetics Company Limited PEAE  ARE80000007 beauty products; provision of
LEEAR=RERERAR beauty treatments and SAP senvices
REEEERFAER

k?&% SETE R SAPHRAS

Chengdu Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC RMB2500000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products;
Company Limited PEAE  ARB25000007 provison of beauty treatments and
BB ARIERERAR skin care and beauty consulting
and training

BERRRERES BER
FELARRETERRER

DEH

Hainan Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC RIMB2,500,000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of skin care and beauty products;
Company Limited EIARE ARE25000000 provision of beauty treatments and
BEEARIERARAR beauty consulting and training

HERRRSAER: RESR
ERRERERRE LA

Shenzhen Natural Beauty Cosmetics The PRC RIMB4,000,000 - - - 90% - - - 90%  Sale of cosmetic products and
Company Limited REAE  ARE40000007 (noteb) provision of beatty treatments
HIEAERRERAA (Hfzb) HEVHERRRIERER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE_T—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued)

33. B A RFHE @)

Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations  share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
iEx/
ERRIR BEAR FRAREKEAR
DRER feny  HRIZERRE OB TRAEELA AREE TERH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B 53 B% [ f:3
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z§5-=f “5-"% -B-Zf "F"F "B-zF "%-"%F ZB-ZF "5 °F
LEEAZERIERARAT  ThePRC RMB300000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesale and etai of skin care and
HEEAEERIERERAR  HEAE  ARESw000T beauty products
HERBERERFAER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Fuli The PRC 551480000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
Cosmetics Company Limited* AR 14800007 beaty products aomatherapeutic
(Formerly known as Shanghai products, provision of skin
FullBeauty Cosmetics Company Limited) treatment, beauty and AP senvice
HEEREERRRERAT EERHERERFARERR
(B LBEBIERERAR) PRER  RUER 2R
Rspii
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Taiwan NT$201,000000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Production and sale of skin care and
Company Limited (Fomeryknown £/ 20100000037 &% beauty products
as Natural Beauty Cosmetics EERHERERFAER
Company Limited)
BAEENHERGERAR
(FIBERERERNERAR)
HueiYao Investment Company Limited ~ Taiwan NT$122043420 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
BRRARDARLT fE 120340855 REER
Ray-Sen Medical Cosmetics Taiwan NT$50000,000 - S 100% 100% - o 100% 100%  Provision of beauty consulting and
Company Limited ag 5000000081 &% (noted) ~ training
(RERSERRROERN (Wa) REZEERRERE
BRAA

)
hEBERANBLERAR

(27 8 B LG T X% B ‘@
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-T—=F+-"A=+—HILHFE

33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. B RIFE (@)
Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations  share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
imas/
ERRIR BER FRARENEAR
DRER fEnl  MEZBRRA iR TRAEELH TEEER IEER
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B B B B

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—8-zf -“§--F -“%-=F -F--fF -§-zf “Z--F “B-ZfF -“F--F

Belem Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR68,609858 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
SRES: Class B shares REER
MYR10000
(lass A shares
BEEABEH
£86098587C
NREREES
100007
Bilion Synergy Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR2 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Wholesgle of skin care and
SRE: SREDETL beauty products
HEEELERER
Ice Crystal Management Limited Bitish Virgin 15952000 - 100% - - - 100% - - Investment holding
KEEERRLT Wends (V) S200XT  (noteh) (note) L
AEGARES (Ktth) (K3tb)
(HELER
#e8l)
Great Glamour Company Limited BVl US$50000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EEERRER  S000ET REER
Next Success International Limited BVl Uss100 100% 100% - S 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ABARRES 100%TC RERR
Fortune Investment Global Limited BYI 15550,000 100% 100% - - 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EEERRER  S0000ET ALK
Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Hong Kong HKS10000 - - 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Sale of cosmetic products and
(Hong Kong) Company Limited Eh 100007 provision of beauty treatments

BREENNE (B8) ERAR geElEo ot trem
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33. Particulars of Subsidiaries (Continued) 33. B RIFE (@)
Registered
capital/
Place of issued and fully Proportion of nominal value of
incorporation paid ordinary issued capital held by the Company
Name of company and operations  share capital and its subsidiaries Attributable to the Group Principal activity
imas/
ERRIR BER FRARENEAR
DRER fEnl  MEZBRRA iR TRAEELH TEEER IEER
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B B B B
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z%-ZF “%-f -%-ZF “3-f C%-ZF “F-f C%-ZF 5%
Natural Beauty China Holding Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$200,000 100% - - 100% 100% - - 100%  Investment holding
BRFPERRERAA 3 2000%T REER
Shanghai Natural Beauty Bio-Med The PRC US$2,600000 - - 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of health
Company Limited* PEAR 26000007 supplernent
(LBERZENBSERAT) FERHERER
LEERRENREERAA
LEEARERNRAERATA The PRC RMB6000,000 - - 100% 100% 100% 1006 100% 1008 Beauty consulting; wholesale and
PEAE  ARE600000T tetal of kin care and
beauty products
XRERRE HERTEEE
RERER
Notes: B 7E -
@  During the year ended 31 December 2012, Natural Beauty Bio-Technology @ REE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HIF

*

Company Limited acquired additional 6% interest in Ray-Sen Medical
Cosmetics Company Limited from its non-controlling shareholder.

The subsidiaries are deregistered during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The subsidiary is foreign investment enterprise with limited liability in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

& BARAEEVRERMDERARME
TR I IR I A R AR ¥
F& 17 B PR A Rl6%HERS o

b) ZEMBRARACREBE_ZT—=F1+=
A=1t—BILFEEUEEM -

*

ZHBRABATEEREEIEDRE -

RELREFAEMMERE - BB B
RAEBTEAHAREEZEBES

(87 8 B 264 B ‘3

.
=% —

MLt



—_
~
N

€10z Moday [enuuy  paywi] Abojouyaa)-olg Aineag [einieN

Financial Summary

R

RESULTS E 5
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—BLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“ETNF ZTFF T —F-——F ZF-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T T T FHExT
REVENUE A 538,092 485,389 591,295 483,438 439,421
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT R R 186,753 75,848 173,647 155,251 83,052
INCOME TAX EXPENSE Frisfipxx (42,830) (45,138) (58475) (36,143) (24,593)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEEF 143,923 30,710 115,172 119,108 58,459
PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO: BUR A L FEARSER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY KATEE A 149,636 31,303 115,123 119,268 58,269
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IR (5713) (593) 49 (160) 190
143,923 30,710 115,172 119,108 58,459
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“EENF —F-TF —T——F T “8-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET & FHET & FHBxT
TOTAL ASSETS HWEE 999,319 940,931 958,626 884,060 982,067
TOTAL LIABILITIES HweE (130,491) (158,297) (170,441) (136,064)  (193,809)
868,828 782,634 788,185 747,996 788,258
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLETO OWNERS XA REH AFE(L
OF THE COMPANY R 868,082 782,487 788,004 748,183 788,258
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS eI R RS 746 147 181 (187) =
868,828 782,634 788,185 747,996 788,258
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